
COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI 


THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 27,2016 

7:30 P.M. - COUNCIL CHAMBERS 


1. 	 Invocation 

2. 	 Pledge of Allegiance 

3. 	 Calling of the Roll 

4. 	 Reading and Consideration of Minutes of Previous Meeting 

5. 	 Citizens Participation Period 

6. 	 Report of Standing Committees 

7. 	 Report from Special Committees and Board Liaisons 

8. 	 Mayor's Report 

9. 	 Miscellaneous Reports of Officers of the City 

10. Report of Claims Committee 

11. Old Business 

1. 	 CB 16-41 - An ordinance approving a cooperative agreement between the 
City of Carthage, Jasper County, Missouri, the County of Jasper County, 
Missouri, and Carthage Special Road District, Jasper County, Missouri for 
road maintenance, snow removal, and enforcement for roads abutting the 
Carthage city limits, and authorizing the mayor of the City of Carthage to 
execute the cooperative agreement for road maintenance, snow removal 
and enforcement.(Public Works) 

2. 	 CB 16-42 - An Ordinance to amend Section 21 -144 of the Code of the 
City of Carthage, City participation in cost of sidewalk improvements. 
(Public Safety) 

12. New Business 

1. 	 CB 16-43 - An Ordinance rezoning certain property at 519 West Fairview 
in the City of Carthage from District "A", First Dwelling, to District "0", Non
Retail, as requested by Carolyn Wyatt. (Planning and Zoning) 

2. 	 CB 16-44 - An Ordinance to add Section 23-641 of the Carthage Code to 
define recreational off-highway vehicles as defined in the Missouri 
Revised Statutes. (Public Safety) 

13. Mayors Appointments 



14. Resolutions 

1. 	 Resolution 1786 - a Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Carthage approving a recommendation of the Public Works Committee 
granting an administrative lot split for property located in the 800 Block of 
Budlong (the East 10.5 feet of Carthage Miscellaneous Lot 58 and all of 
Carthage Miscellaneous Lot 59, Section 3, Township 28, Range 31, 
Jasper County Missouri), Carthage, Missouri. (Public Works) 

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE CALL 417-237-7000 
(VOICE) OR 1-800-735-2466 (TOO VIA RELAY MISSOURI) AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO 
MEETING 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI 

September 15, 2016 

The Carthage City Council met in regular session on the above date at 7:30 P.M. in the 
City Hall Council Chambers with Mayor Pro-T em Dan Rife presiding. Fire Chief Roger 
Williams gave the invocation and Police Chief Greg Dagnan led the flag salute. 

The following Council Members answered roll call: Darren Collier, Brady Beckham, Jason 
T.A. Shelter, Jim Swatsenbarg, Juan Topete, Mike Daugherty, and Dan Rife. Council 
Members Larry Chapin and Tim Shields were absent. City Administrator Tom Short and 
City Attorney Nate Dally were also present. 

The following Department Heads were present: Police Chief Greg Dagnan, Fire Chief 
Roger Williams, Public Works Director Zeb Carney, Parks Director Alan Bull and City 
Clerk Traci Cox. 

Mr. Shelfer made a motion, seconded by Mr. Beckham, to approve the minutes of the 
August 23,2016 Council Meeting. Motion carried. 

During Citizen's Participation Period: Larry Glaze was present to support the Stile family 
and to discuss a benefit for Breast Cancer and Down Syndrome Societies. He also 
thanked Mayor Harris and council members for the 911 Proclamation. Paige Myers and 
Grace Cartwright, Carthage Student Council members, were present to discuss a 
Homecoming Parade followed by a Pep Rally on Wednesday, September 21. Wendi 
Douglas, Carthage Convention and Visitors Bureau, presented website statistics to the 
council. Bill Herron, 1013 S. Main, spoke in opposition of the special use permit at 1101 
Grand stating it was a Historic District and a residential district, and a food truck is not 
made to sit in one place. Feathers Graywolf, 1136 James, was present to show support 
of special use permit at 1101 Grand stating she had no problem with having a business 
there and it would bring more money to Carthage. Jane Trogdon, 1116 Grand. stated she 
was in favor of food trucks but not in a Historic District. She questioned whether it would 
eventually be converted into a restaurant. Joy Sisco, 1106 Grand, stated she was in 
opposition of the special use permit at 1101 Grand because she lives within close 
proximity and it was zoned residential in a Historic District. She was concerned with 
dinner being served and didn't want the noise. Ross Gipson stated he had recently 
moved back to the area and Caleb Stiles was professionally trained and it would be a 
professional operation and felt it should be approved as the property had been 
commercial before. Caleb Stiles, 1101 Grand, informed those present that his character 
should curb some of the questions and he would not make the property a detriment to the 
area. He stated he had no future prospects of converting the property into a restaurant. 
Dinner would not be a sit-down menu, it would be the same as lunch. Possibly two tables 
would be provided to customers but they would be stored at night. 

Mr. Swatsenbarg reported the Budget, Ways and Means Committee meeting that was 
scheduled for September 12 had been canceled. 



conjunction with the 50th anniversary of the Maple Leaf Parade, in the amount of 
$2,995.00 was placed on second reading followed by a roll call vote of 7 yeas and no 
nays. Bill passed. 

CB 16-40, an Ordinance authorizing a special use permit (appeal) for operation of a food 
truck at 1101 Grand Ave, in the City of Carthage, Jasper County, Missouri was placed on 
second reading followed by a roll call vote of 6 yeas and 1 nay. Bill passed. The nay vote 
was cast by Mr. Swatsenbarg. 

Under new business, CB 16-41 - an ordinance approving a cooperative agreement 
between the City of Carthage, Jasper County, Missouri, the County of Jasper County, 
Missouri, and Carthage Special Road District, Jasper County, Missouri for road 
maintenance, snow removal, and enforcement for roads abutting the Carthage city limits, 
and authorizing the mayor of the City of Carthage to execute the cooperative agreement 
for road maintenance, snow removal and enforcement was placed on first reading with 
no action taken. 

CB 16-42 - an Ordinance to amend Section 21 -144 of the Code of the City of Carthage, 
City participation in cost of sidewalk improvements was placed on first reading with no 
action taken. 

Mr. Swatsenbarg made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shelfer, to approve the Mayor's 
appointments to the Carthage Affordable Housing Task Force, the re-appointment of 
Larry Graham, Bud Rogers, Jeff Neely, Chad Reed, Buddy Garner, and Mark Simpson 
until September 2020, and to the Planning, Zoning, &Historic Preservation Commission, 
the appointment of Abbie Almandinger until February 2018. Motion carried. 

Mr. Beckham made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shelter, to approve Resolution 1783, a 
resolution of the council of the City of Carthage, Missouri authorizing the approval of 
change order for construction contract. Resolution passed. 

Mr. Shelfer made a motion, seconded by Mr. Collier, to approve Resolution 1784, a 
resolution approving the declaration of certain materials and pieces of equipment as 
surplus to the city's needs and authorizing their disposition. Resolution passed. 

Mr. Swatsenbarg made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shelfer, to approve Resolution 1785, 
a resolution authorizing the mayor to sign an acquisition of right-of-way letter to the 
Missouri Department of Transportation donating right-of-way for the State Route 96 
Bridge Replacement Project. Resolution passed. 

During closing remarks, Mr. Rife noted the attendance of the Boy Scouts at the meeting, 
Mr. Collier, Mr. Swatsenbarg, and Mr. Daugherty noted their appreciation for those 
attending the council meeting, Mr. Shelter and Mr. Swatsenbarg commented on their 
attendance at the recent MML Conference. 

Mr. Daugherty made a motion, seconded by Mr. Collier, to adjourn the regular session of 

http:2,995.00


Mr. Shelfer reported the Committee on Insurance/Audit and Claims met on this date in 
the Council Chambers and approved the claims. 

Mr. Rife reported the Public Safety Committee was between meetings with the next 
meeting scheduled for September 19. 

Mr. Beckham reported the Public Services Committee met on August 29. Mr. Beckham 
made a motion, seconded by Mr. Daugherty, to allow a commemorative marker to be 
placed in Fair Acres next to the markers already in place as requested by the Cal Ripken 
Baseball Team. Motion passed. He also reported the committee unanimously supported 
Resolution 1783 and Council Bill 16-38. A bike share program was also discussed. 

Mr. Shelter reported the Public Works Committee was between meetings. 

Special Committee and Board Liaison reports were given by Mr. Swatsenbarg for the 
Carthage Water &Electric Plant, Harry S Truman Coordinating Council, the Planning and 
Zoning Board and Vision Carthage Committee, and Mr. Shelfer for the Carthage 
Convention and Visitors Bureau, the Carthage Chamber of Commerce, and the Jasper 
County Commissioners' Meeting. 

Mr. Short reported on the following: a Vision Carthage meeting, a meeting with Economic 
Development Director Mark Elliff and a potential developer for Myer's Park, meetings with 
CWEP, the performance audit on the taxi program, a Region M Solid Waste Management 
meeting, a Way-Finding signage meeting, meetings with Gilmore Bell regarding hospital 
sale, attendance at a United Way Luncheon, the recent MML Conference, and discussed 
a meeting to educate the public on proper bike lane usage. 

The Committee on Claims 'filed a report in the amount of $3,417,437.76 against the 
following funds: General Revenue $200,293.26, Public Health $2,383.37, 
Parks/Stormwater $47,946.87, Golf Course $15,500.56, Lodging $8,333.33, Library 
$34,456.68, Fire Protection $19,810.80, Capital Improvements $130,424.00, Public 
Facilities/Bond Fund $1,141,363.25, Payroll $316,925.64, and Carthage Water & Electric 
$1,500,000.00. Mr. Shelfer made a motion, seconded by Mr. Daugherty, to accept the 
report and allow the claims. Motion carried. 

Under old business, CB 16-37, an Ordinance authorizing a special use permit for the 
operation of private helicopter rides atthe Church of the Nazarene, 2000 Grand Ave., City 
of Carthage, Jasper County, Missouri was placed on second reading followed by a roll 
call vote of 7 yeas and no nays. Bill passed. 

CB 16-38, an Ordinance authorizing a special use permit for the operation of a Carnival 
to be located at The Fair Acres Sports Complex (East George Phelps Blvd.) in the City of 
Carthage, Jasper County, Missouri was placed on second reading followed by a roll call 
vote of 7 yeas and no nays. Bill passed. 

CB 16-39, an Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with Blazing Skies 
Fireworks, LLC, of Joplin, Missouri for fireworks display for October 14, 2016 in 

http:1,500,000.00
http:316,925.64
http:1,141,363.25
http:130,424.00
http:19,810.80
http:34,456.68
http:8,333.33
http:15,500.56
http:47,946.87
http:2,383.37
http:200,293.26
http:3,417,437.76


the Council meeting. Motion carried and meeting adjourned at 8:25 PM. 

J. Michael Harris, Mayor 

Traci Cox, City Clerk 



OLD 


BUSINESS 




COUNCIL BILL 16-41 ORDINANCE:___ 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF CARTHAGE, JASPER COUNTY, MISSOURI, THE COUNTY OF JASPER 
COUNTY, MISSOURI, AND CARTHAGE SPECIAL ROAD DISTRICT, JASPER 
COUNTY, MISSOURI FOR ROAD MAINTENANCE, SNOW REMOVAL, AND 
ENFORCEMENT .FOR ROADS ABUTTING THE CARTHAGE CITY LIMITS, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE TO EXECUTE THE 
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR ROAD MAINTENANCE, SNOW REMOVAL AND 
ENFORCEMENT. 

WHEREAS, annexation is essential to the City's growth, vitality, and economic well-being which 
ensures that development ofsuch territory meets minimal standards designed to protect property values 
and the health, safety, and general welfare of the inhabitants of both the territory and the City, and 
ensures that the territory and its inhabitants are provided adequate levels of services including the 
transportation network, and 

WHEREAS, the purposes of the City's Annexation Policy and Land Use Plan are to minimize 
conflicts between adjacent uses and maximize the efficiency of the transportation network, and 
generally aspire to create a livable environment for the citizens ofthe City, and 

WHEREAS, annexations generally follow existing roads and utilities in order to minimize the public 
expense for extension ofmain or service lines and the transportation network, and 

WHEREAS, annexation in the City of Carthage has occurred sporadically with prior annexations 
annexing portions ofpublic roads, streets or highways and the adjacent rights-of-way, and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Carthage, the County of Jasper, and the Carthage 
Special Road District, Missouri to enter into this agreement for road maintenance, snow removal and 
enforcement in order to increase efficiency and reduce costs, and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized to enter into cooperative agreements with other political 
subdivisions pursuant to Sections 70.210 to 70.325 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri; and 

WHEREAS, Section 70.230 of the Revised Statues ofMissouri provides that the City may enter into 
such cooperative agreements by ordinance duly enacted. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CARTHAGE, JASPER COUNTY, MISSOURI, THE MAYOR CONCURRING HEREIN, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That The Cooperative Agreement for road maintenance, snow removal and enforcement 
on various roads as further specified on Exhibits A, B & C between the City of Carthage, Jasper, 
Missouri, Jasper County, Missouri, and the Carthage Special Road District, Jasper County, Missouri 



appended hereto and made a part hereof, is hereby approved and the Mayor is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute said agreement on behalf of the City ofCarthage, Missouri. 

SECTION 2. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 

SECTION 3. That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage 
and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __DAY OF _____-', 2016. 

J. Michael Harris, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Traci Cox, City Clerk 



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR ROAD 

MAINTENANCE, SNOW REMOVAL AND ENFORCEMENT 


This Agreement is entered into this day of , 2016, by and between the City of 
Carthage, Jasper County, Missouri, a municipal corporation (hereinafter "City"), the County of 
Jasper, Missouri, a county of the first classification (hereinafter "County") and the Carthage 
Special Road District, Jasper County, Missouri ("District"). 

WHEREAS, Sections 70.210 to 70.325 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri authorize political 
subdivisions to enter into cooperative agreements to provide services; and 

WHEREAS, the City, County and District deem it to be in their best interests to enter into this 
agreement for road maintenance, snow· removal and enforcement in order to increase efficiency 
and reduce costs; and 

WHEREAS, the general location ofthe affected City and County roads and streets is described in 
the attached lists and map, marked Exhibits A, B and C respectively; and 

WHEREAS, the City, County and District find that by entering into this agreement the City, 
County and District will ensure that the roads serving their citizens are adequately and efficiently 
maintained, cleared of snow and, administrated. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe mutual covenants and promises herein contained, it 
is hereby agreed as follows: 

1. 	 The City shall remove snow and ice from, and maintain and administrate those designated 
roads in accordance with Exhibits A, B & C attached hereto and incorporated herein, 
pursuant to its snow removal policies. 

2. 	 The County shall maintain and administrate those designated roads in accordance with 
Exhibit A, B & C attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

3. 	 The District shall maintain and administrate those designated roads in accordance with 
Exhibit A, B & C attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

4. 	 Maintenance ofthe roads and streets shall include, but not be limited to, the following work 
items: 

Crack sealing. 

Pot hole patching. 

Full depth patching. 

Road shoulder repair including grading, and other related activities. 

Culvert repairs. 

Ditch work. 

Weed and brush control. 

Trash and litter removal. 

Traffic control device implementation. 

Traffic control device maintenance and repair. 



As part of this Agreement, each party shall maintain present traffic control devices. When 
additional traffic control devices are needed, the City, County and District shall collaborated to 
detennine the appropriate traffic control devices to. be installed. The government entity with 
jurisdiction under law for traffic control shall pay for and install such traffic control devices. 

Snow and ice removal responsibilities and duties shall include the following: 

1. 	 The designated roads and streets in the citis regular snow and ice removal procedures, 
pursuant to City policy. 

2. 	 Prioritizing the clearing of the designated roads and streets by considering traffic volumes 
and speed limits on said roads and streets, pursuant to City policy. 

3. 	 Employing those materials and equipment normally used by the city in its snow and ice 
. removal operations, pursuant to City policy. 

4. 	 The streets/public works departments or road districts ofall parties shall cooperate in order 
to provide a reasonable safe roadway system by reporting any traffic or safety hazards that 
are observed through routine road and street inspections to the party having jurisdiction 
over the road and street where such traffic or safety hazard is located. 

Capital improvements, including but not limited to, resurfacing, curb and gutter, realignment, 
culvert replacement, street lighting or other major construction projects shall remain the 
responsibility ofthe party with jurisdiction under law for traffic control over the road and/or streets. 

To the extent pennitted by law, each party agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the 
other parties, its agencies, boards, officers, agents and employees for any claims, causes of action 
or damages arising from the other party's maintenance of roads described in Exhibits A,B & C 
that's under the indemnifying party's legal jurisdiction. 

Each party hereto shall be responsible for issuing any special use pennits or other pennits that may 
be required for driveways or utilities within its respective jurisdictions. 

Ifany party believes that it would be advantageous to amend this Agreement because ofsubstantial 
annexations or de-annexations by the City, the parties agree to consider making the appropriate 
amendments. Upon agreement to the modifications by each party, modifications will be made to 
Exhibits A, B & C. 

The execution of the Agreement shall be authorized by each party's governing body. 

This Agreement shall be in effect upon its execution by the person authorized to do so for each 
party and hereafter for a period commencing on the date of execution and continuing through the 
31st day of December, 2016 and will renewed for successive annual periods. In the event any 
party provides sixty (60) days written notice to each other party prior to the end ofthis Agreement, 
it shall renew automatically for successive terms ofone year each. 

CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI 
A Horne Rule City 

By: J. Michael Harris, 
Mayor, City ofCarthage 



ArrEST: 

Traci Cox, City Clerk 

JASPER COUNTY COMMISSION 
A County of the First Classification 

By: John Bartosh 
Presiding Commissioner 

ArrEST: 

Secretary 

CARTHAGE SPECIAL ROAD DISTRICT 

By: David Troyer 
Special Road Commissioner 

ArrEST: 

Secretary 



Exhibit A 
(Roads to be maintained/administered by City per limits delineated on map Exhibit "C,,) 

EASTIWEST Roads 

1. 	 W. Mound Street - Baker Blvd. to 1-49 Interchange. 
2. 	 Oak Street (Old Route 66) - Robert Ellis Young Dr. to Country Club Rd. 
3. 	 Robert Ellis Young Dr. (West MaconIMorgan Heights Rd;) - Oak Hill Rd. to Wilson Rd. 
4. 	 West Fairview Ave. - Hazel Ave. to Thompson St. 
5. 	 East 13th Street Buena Vista St. to Railroad tracks. 
6. 	 West Elk - Hazel Ave. to Missouri Ave. 
7. 	 West Airport - Hazel Ave. to Missouri Ave. 
8. 	 East Fir Hazel Ave. to East City Limits. 
9. 	 West Fir Approximately 990 ft. west ofRussell Smith Way intersection to Western City 

Limits. 
10. West Budlong Street - Oak Hill Rd. To Robert Ellis Young Dr. 

NORTH/SOUTH Roads 

11. Robert Ellis Young Drive - Macon St. to W. Budlong St. 
12. WilsonRoad-AlL 
13. Alexandra Drive Madelyn Dr. to Wilson Dr. 
14. Piper Drive All. 
15. South Baker Blvd. - Hannah Ln. to W. Budlong St. and 17th St. to Fairview Ave. 
16. Hazel Avenue Fairview Ave. to Fir Rd. 
17. South Chapel Road W. Fir Rd. to South side ofChapel Estates. 
18. South Chapel Road W. 34th St. to Marigold St. 
19. South Grande Avenue - Hwy. 571 to S. City Limits line. 



EXHIBITB 

(Roads to be maintained/administered by ConntylDistrict per limits delineated on map Exhihit "C") 


EASTIWEST Roads 

1. 	 West Juniper Road City Limits East. 
2. 	 Jackpine Road - All 
3. 	 West Budlong Baker Blvd. to Oak Hill Rd. 
4. 	 West Miller Baker Blvd. to Oak Hill Rd. 
5. 	 Morgan Heights Rd. Wilson Rd. to Country Club Rd. 

NORTH/SOUTH Roads 

6. 	 Country Club Rd. - All 
7. 	 All other Streets or Roads not specifically designated in Exhibits A, B or C and abutting, or 

adjacent to the Carthage City Limits. 



n 
~ """'" 
N 7'1 

I 

r 
\ I 

J 

-=ali' 
1 I 11l:I-H--f!:si 

~ ( 

II - I...... .~ I'=

- -

~ 
f- r 

( J Legend 
-

ROAD SWAP 

L r---1 
( _ GIVEN TO COUNTY 

1111---' RECEIVE FROM COUNTY 

/' 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 16-42 ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 21 144 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
CARTHAGE, CITY PARTICIPATION IN COST OF SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, JASPER 
COUNTY, MISSOURI as follows: 

SECTION I: Section 21-144 ofthe Code ofCarthage is hereby repealed and the following 
enacted in lieu thereof: 

Sec. 21-144. - City participation in cost of sidewalk improvements. 

The purpose of this program is to encourage property owners to replace or install residential and/or 
commercial sidewalks within the City of Carthage. 

(a) The city shall reimburse, subject to the availability of funds in the fiscal year construction is completed, 
a portion of the costs, to the owner of any lot or tract, who shall construct, rebuild, or reconstruct in 
compliance with this article, a sidewalk lying along and adjacent to his said property. Reimbursement to 
said owners shall be made as follows: Three dollars ($3.00) per square foot ofnew sidewalk constructed in 
accordance with city specifications as defmed in section 21-125(a), (b), (c), (d), and (e) provided that all 
work has been accepted and reimbursement approved by the Public Works Director. Anyone (l) owner or 
owners shall not receive more than three thousand dollars ($3,000) reimbursement per fiscal year, except 
where said owners meet all requirements for reimbursement for additional tracts of land and providing that 
reimbursement for said additional tracts of land shall not be made until reimbursement has been made 
during the current fiscal year to all owners entitled to reimbursement under this section as to one (1) tract 
of land. 

(b) All construction, reconstruction, rebuilding, or repair of sidewalks less than full width as required in 
section 21-125, shall not be eligible for reimbursement of funds. 

(c) All sidewalks constructed by order ofthe city council as provided in section 21-132, shall not be eligible 
for reimbursements, unless specifically authorized by a council bilL 

(d) All sidewalks constructed, repaired, or reconstructed by order of the city engineer in compliance with 
this article, where a special tax bill has been issued, shall not be eligible for reimbursements, unless said 
special tax bill has been paid in full within thirty (30) days after date of issuance. 

(e) The program is not available to property owners where sidewalks are required as a part of the City'S 
sub-division or development standards, i.e., existing or new undeveloped lots. 

(t) The owner may choose to hire a contractor with a valid Carthage business license or may choose to 
conduct the work himself or herself. 

SECTION II: 1bis Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 
and approval. 



PASSED AND APPROVED THIS DAY OF 

________-', 2016. 

J. Michael Harris, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Traci Cox, City Clerk 



Sec. 21-144. - City participation in cost of sidewalk improvements. 

The purpose of this program is to encourage property owners to replace or install residential and/or 

commercial sidewalks within the City of Carthage. 

(a) The city shall reimburse, subject to the availability of funds in the fiscal year construction is completed, 

a portion of the costs, to the owner of any lot or tract, who shall construct, rebuild, or reconstruct in 

compliance with this article, a sidewalk lying along and adjacent to his said property. Reimbursement to 

said owners shall be made as follows: Three dollars ($3.00) per square foot of new sidewalk constructed 

in accordance with city specifications as defined in section 21-125(a), (b), (c), (d). and (e) provided that all 

work has been accepted and reimbursement approved by the Public Works Director. Anyone (1) owner 

or owners shall not receive more than three thousand dollars ($3.000) reimbursement per fiscal year, 

except where said owners meet all requirements for reimbursement for additional tracts of land and 

providing that reimbursement for said additional tracts of land shall not be made until reimbursement 

has been made during the current fiscal year to all owners entitled to reimbursement under this section 

as to one (1) tract of land. 

(b) All construction, reconstruction, rebuilding, or repair of sidewalks less than full width as required in 

section 21-125, shall not be eligible for reimbursement of funds. 

(c) All sidewalks constructed by order of the city council as provided in section 21-132, shall not be eligible 

for reimbursements, unless specifically authorized by a council bill. 

(d) All sidewalks constructed, repaired, or reconstructed by order of the city engineer in compliance with 

this article, where a special tax bill has been issued, shall not be eligible for reimbursements, unless said 

special tax bill has been paid in full within thirty (30) days after date of issuance. 

(e) The program is not available to property owners where sidewalks are required as a part of the City's 

sub-division or development standards, i.e., existing or new undeveloped lots. 

(f) The owner may choose to hire a contractor with a valid Carthage business license or may choose to 

conduct the work himself or herself. 

(Ord. No. 99-52, § 11,6-22-99; Ord. No. 02-31, § I, 6-4-2002 



NEW 


BUSINESS 




COUNCIL BILL NO. 16-43 ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

An Ordinance rezoning certain property at 519 West Fairview in the City of Carthage from 

District "A", First Dwelling, to District "0", Non-Retail as requested by Carolyn Wyatt. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, JASPER 

COUNTY, MISSOURI as follows: 

SECTION I: The following described property is hereby rezoned from District "A", First 

Dwelling, to District "0", Non-Retail as requested by Carolyn Wyatt to wit: 

HALL & WIDTSETTS ADD E 79' LOTS 25 TO 27 INC. 

SECTION II: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and 

approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED TmS __ DAY OF ______, 2016. 

J. Michael Harris, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Traci, Cox, City Clerk 



R.ELL'NINC~ REQUEST 

lOll 111/1 " fJrond~ ,,/I rt'C/llelled III/ilrlll,,'ioll (II/ till' "I'I'I/(',,'ioll Hlallks !IltH' ,lela!' pr()I't'Hilig 

,I'O,,/, /','(II(,'SI, lI"ri,e '/I ,,' if illlill'lllll/iOIl 11'" lIl'pliclI""'! 

", IlIIel"lto ',\ I/tlple /,"0/ ( 'in" 

Filing Fee: $100.00 

Relationship 10 Owner: 

Tell': 

City: State: _______ Zip Code: _~"'.. , ______~ 

Email ,\ddress: Fa,,: 

Property Location; 

Legal Descri pt ion: 

Adjacenl Zoning and Land lise: 

Zoning 



Present Usc of Property: 

Proposed Lsc ofPropert}: 

I 

'A · frj2·s,- T>weu-IN&,Cu rrent Zoning:______________ 

Zoning Requested: 

Request initiated b) : Denied pennit ~ew development 

Return Form [(}: Public \\'OrKS Departmenl 

Date Received: Appro\cd: [~l YesOffice rse Only: Hearing date: 



Beacon™ Jasper County, MO 




Legend 

- County Boundary 

o Parcels 

- Major Roads 

Local Roads 

Zoning 

A - First Dwelling B

• Second Dwelling C 

Apartment

• 0- Non Retail 

• D - Local Business 

• E - General Busines 

F - Light Industrial 

• G-Heavy Industrial 



519 W Fairview 




COUNCIL BILL NO. 16-44 	 ORDINANCE NO. _____ 


An Ordinance to add Section 23-641 ofthe Carthage Code to define recreational off-

highway vehicles as defined in the Missouri Revised Statutes. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, JASPER 

COUNTY, MISSOURI as follows: 

SECTION I: Chapter 23 ofthe Carthage Code is hereby added Section 23-641 to read: 

• Sec 23-641 Recreational Off Highway Vehicle 

a) Definitions: "Recreational off-highway vehicle", is any motorized vehicle manufactured and 
used exclusively for off-highway use which is more than fifty inches but no more than sixty
seven inches in width, with an unladen dry weight oftwo thousand pounds or less, traveling on 
four or more non-highway tires and which may have access to A TV trails. 

b) 	 Regulations: Sections 23-632, 23-633, 23-634, 23-635, 23-637, 23-638 and 23-639 as stated 
above shall Apply to operators ofAll Recreational OffHighway Vehicles driven within the City 
of Carthage. 

SECTION II: TIlls Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 

and approval. 

PASSED ANDAPPROVEDTHIS ____ DAYOF _______-', 2016. 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

Sponsored by: Public Safety Committee 



Gentlemen, 

We have discussed this around in the Police Department for 6 to 8 months now. I'm pretty 
confident that this change needs to be done and that this is the way to fix our problem from the 
research that we've done. We are having a problem with RZR and other 4 wheel (usually two 
seater) vehicles driving around the city, and people are calling in and complaining. Right now, 
these are not illegal in the city (only state laws apply) but I think adding this paragraph would 
solve the problem. Even though there are some things that I would like to change about the 
current A TV ordinance after reading it, we're not having problems with any portion of this 
ordinance so I chose to leave it untouched. I've attached below the current ordinance and the new 
wording. By the way, the definition of recreational off-highway vehicle is the one from the state 
statute. The trick is to keep what we have on ATVs since it is working, but include RZRs in the 
mix as well. I have place a pic ofa RZR below, they do not fit our current definition ofA TV, 
thus causing the problem. The new criminal code change in 2017 will not affect this state law. 
Below is the current ordinance along with the proposed paragraph. 

/'".... 
.:"--/ 



• ARTICLE IX. - ALL-TERRAIN VEHICLES [4] 

• Sec. 23-631. - Definitions. 

An all-terrain vehicle is any motorized vehicle manufactured and used exclusively for off
highway use that is fifty (50) inches or less in width, with an unloaded dry weight of six hundred 
(600) pounds or less, traveling on three (3), four (4) or more low-pressure tires with a seat 
designed to be straddled by the operator, and handlebars for steering control. 

(Ord. No. 6139, A§ I, 7-26-88) 

• Sec. 23-632. - Prohibited on city streets; exceptions. 

No person shall operate an all-terrain vehicle upon the streets of this city, except as follows: 

(I)All-terrain vehicles operated for agricultural purposes or industrial on premise purposes 
between the official sunrise and sunset on the day ofoperation. 

(2)AlI-terrain vehicles whose operators carry a special pennit issued by this city. The city clerk 
shall prepare an application fonn for the special pennit and charge a fee of fifteen dollars 
($15.00) for each pennit. 

(Ord. No. 6851, A§ II, 7-26-88) 

• Sec. 23-633. - Prohibited in streams, exceptions. 

No person shall operate an all-terrain vehicle within any stream or river in this city, except that 
all-terrain vehicles may be operated within waterways that flow within the boundaries of land 
that an all-terrain vehicle operator owns or has pennission to be upon. 

(Ord. No. 6139, A§ III, 7-26-88) 

• Sec. 23-634. - License and flag required. 

A person operating an all-terrain vehicle on a street or highway pursuant to an exception covered 
in this article shall have a valid operators' or chauffeurs' license, but shall not be required to have 
passed an examination for the operation of a motorcycle, and the vehicle shall be operated at 
speeds ofless than thirty (30) miles per hour. When operated on a street or highway, an all
terrain vehicle shall have a bicycle safety flag, which extends not less than seven (7) feet above 
the ground, attached to the rear of the vehicle. The bicycle safety flag shall be triangular in shape 
with an area of not less than thirty (30) square inches and shall be day-glow in color. 

(Ord. No. 6139, A§ IV, 7-26-88) 



• Sec. 23-635. - Careless driving; under the influence; helmet required. 

No person shall operate an all-terrain vehicle: 


(1 )In any careless way so as to endanger the person or property of another; 


(2)While under the influence ofalcohol or any controlled substance; 

(3)Without a securely fastened safety helmet on the head of an individual who operates an all
terrain vehicle unless the individual is at least eighteen (18) years of age. 

(Ord. No. 6139, A§ V, 7-26-88) 

• Sec. 23-636. - Passengers prohibited, exception. 


No operator of an all-terrain vehicle shall carry a passenger, except for agricultural purposes. 


(Ord. No. 6139, A§ VI, 7-26-88) 


• Sec. 23-637. - Equipment required. 

All all-terrain vehicles operated within the city shall have the equipment installed upon them as 

specified in section 307.198 RSMo. 


(Ord. No. 6139, A§ VII, 7-26-88) 


• Sec. 23-638. - Private property. 

No person shall operate an all-terrain vehicle on private property without the consent of the 

owner or lessor thereof. 


(Ord. No. 6139, A§ VIII, 7-26-88) 


• Sec. 23-639. - Penalty. 

Any person found guilty ofviolating this article shall be subject to a fine not to exceed five 

hundred dollars ($500.00). 


(Ord. No. 6139, A§ IX, 7-26-88) 


• Sec. 23-640. - Golf carts. 

(a) Definition. A golf cart which may be operated on the streets, roads and alleyways ofthe city 
shall be classified as a low-speed vehicle. 



(1) The following must appear on the manufactured statement of origin (MSO): 

a.The body type must be specified as a low speed vehicle. 

b.There must be a statement indicating that the LSV meets or exceeds the minimal federal safety 
requirements. 

(2) All golf carts classified as low-speed vehicles shall be manufactured in compliance with the 
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration standards for low-speed vehicles. Golf carts 
operated on city streets shall conform to safety standards as outlined in 49 C.F.R. 571.500. 

(b )Notwithstanding any other provisions oflaw, all golf carts will be defined as motor vehicles 
for the purpose ofany law dealing with driving under the influence, driving while intoxicated 
and driving while suspended or revoked. 

(c )Requirements for operating golf carts on city streets, roads or alleyways within the city: 

(1 )The golf cart shall be currently registered and licensed pursuant to city ordinances; 

(2)Any individual operating a golf cart shall have a valid operator's or chauffeur's license, but is 
not required to pass an examination for the operation of a motorcycle; 

(3)The golf cart shall be properly insured and such proofof insurance shall specifically list the 
vehicle as referenced by the serial number and year ofmodel; 

(4)Any individual operating a golf cart shall be at least eighteen (18) years old; 

(5)Any individual operating a golf cart shall wear a properly fastened seat belt; 

(6)The golf cart shall be operated at a speed of less than twenty (20) miles per hour (RSMo 
304.034). 

(7)The golf cart shall have a bicycle safety flag, which extends not less than seven (7) feet above 
the ground, attached to the rear of the vehicle; the flag shall be day-glow colored and shall be 
triangular shaped, with an area not less than thirty (30) square inches. 

(8)The golf cart shall be properly equipped with headlights, taillights, brake lights and turn 
signals. 

(d)No individual operating a golf cart shall: 

(1 )Operate the golf cart in any careless or imprudent manner so as to endanger any person or 
property ofany person; 

(2)Operate the golf cart on any federal, state or county highways, except to cross; 



(3)No golf cart shall cross any federal or state highway at an intersection where the highway 
being crossed has a posted speed limit of more than forty-five (45) miles per hour. 

(e)Violations of this section shall be a misdemeanor. 

(Ord. No. 10-24, A§ I, 7-27-10) 

New Wording 

• Sec 23-641 Recreational OffHighway Vehicle 

a) Definitions: "Recreational off-highway vehicle", is any motorized vehicle 
manufactured and used exclusively for off-highway use which is more than fifty inches but no 
more than sixty-seven inches in width, with an unladen dry weight oftwo thousand pounds or 
less, traveling on four or more non-highway tires and which may have access to A TV trails. 

b) Sections 23-632, 23-633, 23-634, 23-635, 23-637, 23-638 and 23-639 above Shall 
Apply to operators ofAll Recreational OffHighway Vehicles driven within the City of Carthage. 



MAYOR'S 


APPOINTMENTS 




RESOLUTIONS 




RESOLUTION NO. 1786 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE APPROVING A 
RECOMMENDATION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE GRANTING AN 
ADMINISTRATIVE LOT SPLIT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE 800 BLOCK OF BUDLONG 
(THE EAST 10.5 FEET OF CARTHAGE MISCELLANEOUS LOT 58 AND ALL OF CARTHAGE 
MISCELLANEOUS LOT 59, SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 28, RANGE 31, JASPER COUNTY 
MISSOURI), CARTHAGE, MISSOURI. 

WHEREAS, Article II Section 22 of the Code ofCarthage provides for the approval of plats for subdivisions 
in the City ofCarthage; and 

WHEREASt Section 22-21 provides for exemptions from the full provisions of the article with approval by the 
Mayor and City Council; and 

WHEREAS, city staff reviewed the application and the proposed land split map for completeness and accuracy; 
and 

WHEREAS, staff presented its recommendation to the Public Works Committee at its regularly scheduled 
meeting ofSeptember 6, 2016 for action and recommendation to the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, on September 6, 2016 the Public Works Committee considered and discussed the staff 
recommendation and voted unanimously in favor of recommending said administrative lot split to the City 
Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, 
JASPER COUNTY, MISSOURI, THE MAYOR CONCURRING HEREIN, AS FOLLOWS: 

That pursuant to Section 22-21 (d) of the Code ofCarthage, the administrative lot split located in the 800 Block 
of Budlong (the East 10.5 feet of Carthage Miscellaneous Lot 58 and all of Carthage Miscellaneous Lot 59, 
Section 3, Township 28, Range 31, Jasper County Missouri), Carthage, Missouri as recommended by the City's 
Public Works Committee on September 6,2016, is hereby approved as submitted. 

PASSEDANDAPPROVEDTHIS ___DAYOF _____-',2016. 

J. Michael Harrist Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Traci Cox, City Clerk 

Sponsored by: Public Works Committee 



TRACT A 

TIIE NORTH HALF OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND: 

THE EAST 10.5 FEET OF CARTHAGE MISCELLANEOUS LOT 58 AND ALL OF 
CARTHAGE MISCELLANEOUS LOT 59, IN THE CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI, AS 
PREVIOUSLY PLATTED. 

SUBJECT TO ANY EXISTING EASEMENTS OR RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. 

TRACTB 

THE SOUTH HALF OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND: THE EAST 
10.5 FEET OF CARTHAGE MISCELLANEOUS LOT 58 AND ALL OF CARTHAGE 
MISCELLANEOUS LOT 59, IN TIIE CITY OF CARTHAGE, MISSOURI, AS PREVIOUSLY 
PLATTED. 

SUBJECT TO ANY EXISTING EASEMENTS OR RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. 

Sponsored by: Public Worlcs Committee 



MINUTES 


STANDING 


COMMITTEES 




COMMITTEE ON INSURANCE/AUDIT AND CLAIMS 
TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 15, 2016 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Jason Shelfer, Mike Dallgherty, and Dan Collier. 

OTHER COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

OTHERS PRESENT: City Administrator Tom Short, Finance Officer Maria Gutierrez-Fisher 

Chairman Jason Shelfer called the meeting to order at 4:45 P.M. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting: On a motion by 
Mr. Daugherty, the minutes of the August 23, 2016 meeting were approved 3-0. 

Review and approval of the Claims Report: The Committee discussed items 
regarding the Claims Report before it was approved 3-0 on a motion by Mr. 
Daugherty. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

Staff Reports: 

Mrs. Gutierrez-Fisher noted her attendance at the Missouri Public Finance 
Finance Institute in St. Louis, MO hosted by State Treasurer Clint Zweifel. The 
information given was valuable and used to help gain a better understanding of 
investments of public funds. 

Mrs. Gutierrez-Fisher also noted City Hall has two openings; Payroll Clerk and 
Accounts Receivable Clerk. For now, the Accounts Payable Clerk, was trained to 
process Payroll and the Finance Officer will cover for the Accounts Receivable 
position until replacements are hired. An option the City is considering is to 
outsource payroll to a local CPA 'firm. 

Mr. Short detailed the arbitrage payment rebate to the IRS. 

Mr. Short and Mrs. Cox also discussed the renewal of the Beimdiek Health 

Insurance plan. 


Mr. Shelfer reported his attendance at the recent MML conference. 


Other Reports: None 

ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Collier made a motion to adjourn at 5:11 PM. Motion carried 3-0. 

Maria Gutierrez-Fisher 
Finance Officer 



Planning, Zoning, and Historic Preservation 
Meeting 19 September, 2016 

The Planning, Zoning, and Historic Preservation Committee consists of eleven members: Chairman Harry 
Rogers, Vice Chairman Kara Hardesty, Eric Putnam, Harold Neely, Richard "Bud" Rogers, Abi 
Almandinger, and Bill Barksdale. City Council liaison is Jim Swatsenbarg. City Staff include Tom Short, 
Zeb Carney, and Mayor Mike Harris. 

Committee Members Present: Harry Rogers, Kara Hardesty, Eric Putnam, Jim Swatsenbarg, Zeb Carney, 
Mayor Mike Harris, and Bill Barksdale 

Also present: Julie Tilley, and Carolyn Wyatt 

A quorum was present 

Chairman Harry Rogers called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. 

First order of business involved the minutes of the August 15, 2016 meeting. 
Minutes stand as presented. (Motion to approve minutes by Kara Hardesty with a second by Harry 
Rogers. Motion Passed) 

Second order ofbusiness was to discuss a Rezoning Request from Carolyn Wyatt for a property 
located at 519 West Fairview. The property is currently zoned as "A" First Dwelling with a request to 
change the zoning to "0" Non-Retail. Mrs. Wyatt presented her proposal for intended use of the property 
under the non-retail zoning and intends to use it as an office for her real estate property management 
business. Letters were sent and a telephone call from a neighbor to the residence in question was received 
by the Public Works Department. They were against it citing their monetary expense in upkeep to their 
property would be jeopardized by the change. A motion was made by Bill Barksdale to rezone the 
property at 519 West Fairview from "A" First Dwelling to "0" Non-Retail. There was a second by Harry 
Rogers. Motion passed by a vote of 3 to 1 to send the request to council for approval. (Chairman Rogers 
asked that the person who called be notified as to when the item will appear before City Council.) 

Third order of business was to discuss a Demolition of Property request from Public Works for a 
residence located at 611 Howard. The house is in disrepair and the property owner had been cited in court 
for BOCA Violations at least four times since July 2013. In November they appeared in court and pled 
guilty. They allowed the property to go back to the bank. After the bank inspected the property, they did 
not want it. All efforts to locate the owner have met with negative results. Bill Barksdale made a motion 
to allow the demolition of the structure at 611 Howard. Kara Hardesty gave a second to the motion which 
passed unanimously. 

Fourth order of business was an acknowledgement of a letter of resignation from Harold Neely. 
He was appointed to the Planning Zoning and Historic Preservation Commission on April12, 2005. Mr. 
Neely was a long time employee of the City of Carthage and his expertise, knowledge, experience, and 
dedication will be greatly missed along with his sense of humor. 

Bill Barksdale made a motion to adjourn which was given a second by Harry Rogers. Motion passes 
and meeting is adjourned. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Bill Barksdale 



Public Safety Committee - Minutes 

Meeting Date: September 19, 2016 Meeting Location: Carthage Police Department 

Call to Order: Chairman Rife TIme called to Order: 5:30pm 

Attendance: 
Chairman Rife x Mavor Harris X carthage Press X 
Councilman Daugherty X Administrator Short o Joplin Globe o 
Councilman Collier X Chief Dagnan X Morning Mail o 
Councilman Chapin o Chief Williams X 

Citizen/Other: Morgan Housh Carthage Fire Department 
Chris Goodwin carthage citizen 
caleb Stiles carthage citizen/owner of the Lunch Truck 
Cherry Babcock carthage citizen/ owner of Cherry's Gallery 

Approval of Minutes: 

Correction of Minutes: Motion to accept the minutes of the last held meeting as written. 


Motion made by: Councilman Daugherty Motion PASSED 


Citizen Participation Period: 

Citizen (Name/Affiliation/Address): Chris Goodwin 


Topic of Concern: Concert on the Square Maple Leaf Saturday, October 15th
• 

Brief Synopsis of Concern: Chris is requesting to have a concert on the Square after Maple Leaf, 
October 15, 2016 from 8:00pm to midnight. There will be two national artists and 4 local artists performing. The 
concert will be held on the NW corner of the Square. Admission is $10.00 a person for 21 years of age and older. 
There is a stage that will already be sit up from the Maple Leaf parade by the Chamber of Commerce that Chris will 
be using with the Chamber's permission and approval. Chris has been working with Cherry Babcock of Cherry's 
Gallery to sell beer to the concert attendees. The beer sales will be set up at Cherry'S building under the outdoor 
roof and she will be in charge of managing the sales. People will be able to purchase beer in plastiC cups there at 
Cherry's and take them into the gated area of the concert. The event will have individual/private security (GT 
Security) brought in by Chris and also have CPO officers. The event will limit the number of attendees to 750 
people inside the gated concert area. 

Motion was made by Councilman Daugherty to approve the concert on October 15th with the blocking off of the 
Square on the west side from the north corner to the south corner, and also a portion of the north side of the 
Square. Motion also made to allow beer to be sold at Cherry's in plastic cups to be within the fenced in area of the 
concert and allow noise till midnight as long as all criteria is met as far as insurance and approval of the Chamber 
of Commerce for stage use. Motion PASSED. 

Persons with disabilities who need special assistance - please contact the 

Fire Department at 417-237-7100, or the Police Department at 417-237-7200 




Citizen (Name/Affiliation/Address): Caleb Stiles and Cherry Babcock 

Topic of Concern: Octoberfest - Beer garden on the Square October 22, 2016 

Brief Synopsis of Concern: caleb Stiles and Cherry Babcock are requesting to block off the west 
side of the Square from the furthest north door of Cherry's Gallery to Rumor Has It for the beer garden. They will 
be having a beer garden from 4:00pm to 10:oopm. The event will include the beer garden, German food, Polka 
band, and costume contest. You must be 21 years of age and older to get into the beer garden potion of the event. 
It is a $5.00 admission to enter into this area of the Square. Beer will be sold at Cherry's Gallery in plastic cups. CPO 
will be at Octoberfest for security. 

Motion was made by Councilman Collier to allow Caleb and Cherry to host Octoberfest and beer garden on 
Saturday October 22, 2016 with the blocking off of the west side of the Square (NW corner to the SW corner) from 
4:00pm to 10:oopm with a defined designated area for the beer garden and food. Motion PASSED 

Police Department Business: 

Agenda Item: 	 Ordinance regulating Rzr type vehicles 

Brief Synopsis of Discussion: Chief Dagnan would like to add verbiage to Article IX - All-terrain 
vehicle ordinance. ATV are not allowed in Carthage without permit from the City. The State Statute bans them on 
all state highways and makes it difficult to enforce in the city. The ordinance will remain the same as written with 
the adding of the new wording to the statute. This wording is as follows: 

Sec 23-641 Recreational Off Highway Vehicle 

a) 	 Definitions: "Recreational off-highway vehicleH 
, is any motorized vehicle manufactured and used 

exclusively for off-highway use which is more than fifty inches but no more than sixty-seven inches in 
width, with an unladen dry weight of two thousand pounds or less, traveling on four or more non
highway tires and which may have access to ATV trails. 

b) 	 Sections 23-632,23-633,23-634,23-635,23-637,23-638, and 23-639 above shall apply to operators 
of All Recreational Off Highway Vehicles driven within the City of carthage. 

Motion was made by Councilman Daugherty to approve the changes to the ordinance as stated in the outlined 
request and move to full council. Motion PASSED 

Fire Department Business: 

Agenda Item: 	 Maple leaf Fireworks in Central Park 

Brief Synopsis of Discussion: The fireworks will be held on October 14th in Central Park. Chief 
Williams is requesting that 7th Street, Chestnut Street, and 6th & Maple be closed during the set up. During the 
firing of the fireworks all of Central Park will be closed down as well as the streets. The CPO and CFD will be in 
charge of securing the area. Duenweg Fire Department has agreed to assist the CFD with their ladder truck in the 
case of an emergency. They will station at the CFD. 

Motion was made by Councilman Daugherty to give Chief Williams the authority to regiment street closures and 
other necessities for the fireworks. As well as the final approval to stop the firing of the fireworks. 

Motion PASSED. 

Persons with disabilities who need special assistance - please contact the 

Fire Departtnent at 417-237-7100, or the Police Departtnent at 417-237-7200 




Agenda Item: Miscellaneous 

Brief Synopsis of Discussion: The CFD John Deere Gator has been purchased and equipped with 
tank unit. No motion needed. 

Chief Williams is still working on Station 2 plans. No motion needed. 

Agenda Item: Property 


Brief Synopsis of Discussion: The Carthage Fire Department would like to purchase property behind 

Station1. The FD has no room to store anything without taking up limited parking spaces. Chief is requesting 

approval to move forward with looking into the property. 


Motion was made by Councilman Daugherty to allow Chief Williams to pursue and research the property. 


Motion PASSED 


Next Meeting Date: October 17, 2016 


Next Meeting Location: Carthage Fire Department 


Adjournment 


Motion made by Councilman Daugherty for adjournment. Motion PASSED 


Persons with disabilities who need special assistance - please contact the 

Fire Department at 417-237-7100, or the Police Department at 417-237-7200 




,-----~ --~--- --------------- - --- -- -- - -------------- --- - ------- -- ---- ------- ------ ---~ 

r----- - -- - ------------ --------_______ __ __________________________________ _ 

MINUTES 

SPECIAL 


COMMITTEES 

ANDBOARDS 


,- -- - --- --------- ------ -- --------~-------- ----------- ---- --~---- - ---------~ 
,-- -- ---- ---------------------- ------- -------------------------------------



The Carthage Public Library Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes - August 2016 

The Carthage Public Library Board of Trustees met Tuesday. August 9,2016 in the Carthage Public library 
Board Room. The meeting was called to order at 5:15 pm by Kelly Hartley, President. 

Roll Call 
Board Members present were: Kelly Hartley, Kevin Johnson, Sandy Swingle, Eric Putnam, Peggy Ralston, Carrie 
Campbell (departed meeting after the Communications report), Gary Cole and Justin Baucom. Also present 
was Library Director Julie Yockey. Board member Kelll Nugent was absent. Counei/liaison Steve Lelbbrand 
was also absent. Library employees Darcy Wood and Mike Toole were also present at the beginning of the 
meeting. 

Minutes of Last Meeting 
There was one change to the minutes ofthe last regular meeting. Under Committee Reportsj Building 
Committee the comment about needing to replace Sarah Jordan on the Building Committee was removed. 
Sarah Jordan was not on the Building Committee. A motion to approve the minutes as amended of the 
regular session of the July 12, 2016 meeting was made by Peggy Ralston and seconded by SandySwlngfe. 
Motion passed unanimously. A motion to approve the minutes of the closed session of the July 12, 2016 
meeting was made by Eric Putnam and seconded by Peggy Ralston. Motion passed unanimously. 

Financial Report 
Attached. June 2016 accrual basis financials and the July 2016 cash basis finaneials were presented. 
Discussion included: (1) June 2016 cash basis fjnancials did not change. The accrual basis financials were 
created for the Auditor. (2) Julie presented a proposal to modify the 2015-2016 budget to match actual 
expenses. Eric Putnam moved to accept the proposed changes. Peggy Ralston seconded. Motion passed 
unanimously. (3} We have received some of the proceeds from the new Sales Tax. At the same time the City 
has withheld the Hold Harmless revenue and we have not received the Sales Tax proceeds for Jan-Mar 2016. 
It is difficult to understand exactly what has been received. The board discussed getting sales tax information 
from the state Department of Revenue for verification purposes, Julie will contact Tom Flannigan and discuss 
the possibility. (4) July 2016 finandals were reviewed but not approved because they had not been finalized. 

Director's Progress and Service Report 
Attached. Discussion included: (1) Library employees Darcy Wood and Mike Toole addressed the board, 
describing their job functions. (2) Julie presented three new or revised Ubrary policies: Vacation leave 
(revised). Confidential Patron Information (new) and Unattended Children (new). Peggy Ralston moved to 
accept all three policies as presented. Gary Cole seconded. Motion pass unanimously. 

Youth Services Progress and Services Report 
No report. 

President's Message 
(1) Kelly presented Gary Cole with a card and gifts thanking him for his service as Ubrary Board President. 

Council Uaison's Report 
No report. 

Committee Reports DRAFT 
1 




The Carthage Public Library Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes - August 2016 

Building Committee - No report. 
Budget Committee - No report 
Community Relations - No report 
By-laws - No report 
Ubrary Gardens - (1) Julie advised she will be writing a grant for a new garden shed for the Ubrary 

Gardens. 
ADA Compliance - No report 
Communications - None 

Unflnished Business 
(1) The Coffee Shop Committee updated the board about their meeting with Kevin Checkett. The meeting 
went well and the committee will be conducting a patron survey about the coffee shop. 

New Business 
No report. 

Payment of Bills 
Kelly Hartley said she had reviewed the bills and they could be paid. Eric Putnam made a motion to pay the 
bills. Gary Cole seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 

Other New Business 
No report. 

Closed Session 
No. 

Adjournment 
Eric Putnam made a motion to adjourn. Sandy Swingle seconded. Motion passed unanimously. Meeting was 
adjourned at 6:35 pm. 

~S,ub~m-.?i~~_____ 

Kevin johnson 
Secretary·Treasurer 

2 




Carthage Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors 
Thursday, August 18, 2016 

Members present: Members absent: Liaisons/ex-officios absent: Staff present: 
Susa n Wend leton Robert Goar Jim Benton, liaison Mark Elliff 
Kenney Arnold Tina Hallmark Chuck Bryant, ex-offcio Mary Jo Little 
Ryan Brunnert Brian Schmidt Wendi Douglas, liaison . Neely Myers 
Paul Eckels Dr. Sean Smith Jim Honey, liaison 
Dr. Jon Haffner Steve Willis Jason Shelfer, liaison 
Rodney Hinds Tom Short, ex-officio 
Roy Mason 

Quorum being present, Board Chair Wendleton called the meeting to order at 7:35 a.m . 

. July minutes were presented for review. There being no corrections, Mason moved to approve 
the minutes, Eckels seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously. 

Financial reports for July were presented for review. Elliff reported that net income was ahead 
of budget, mostly due to higher than expected income for Maple leaf at this time. Financial 
report was filed for audit. 

Wendleton commented on the loss of City Councilman Steve leibbrand and the appearance of a 
successful Food Truck Friday adding that our participation with respect to Support the Blue was 
a good investment . 

. Membership Report: Myers reported 7 new members and 4 dropped members in July for a net 
annual gain of $355. July 31 membership was 413, an increase of 15 and net gain of $4191 from 
the previous year. 

Ambassadors: Hinds reported continued success with Monday Member Meet-up and a tapering 
off of Ribbon Cuttings scheduled. Myers reported that members began sending welcome letters 
to new members this week. 

Banquet: Myers reported that a usa theme had been chosen with Elliff adding that now that a 
theme has been chosen, meal and print bids would gO'out to Chamber members providing those 
services. Myers added that sponsorship opportunities were in the packet for review. 

Emerging leaders: Wendleton highlighted upcoming member events in the Board packet 
including a tour of Garrett Family Farm on August 31 and a IIPeople You Need to Know" event 
featuring Karl Glassman of leggett & Platt in December. Wendleton further advised of the need 
for at least one more $500 sponsor for the November Motive Matters course. 

Golf: Myers reported 14 teams with sponsorship opportunities listed in the packet. 

Maple leaf: Elliff reported that a carnival contract had been received with 2 readings for use of 
the city parking lot necessary at City Council before approval, the fireworks contract has been 
received with sponsors needed to defray the cost, and highlighted the history book project's 
advertising opportunities. Myers added that research of a local penny press machine at Precious 
Moments was discussed. Myers will research the possibility of leasing a machine from a new 
company for just Maple leaf. 



Marketing: Myers reported that 2017 directory planning had begun. She noted that the Expo 
kick-off meeting was scheduled for August 22. 

Public Policy: Wendleton reported that the committee was not meeting during the summer. 

Elliff is working to get the final signed Whistle blower and Code of Conduct/Conflict of interest 
policies Friday, Augus~ 19. 

No new business discussion was needed. 

Elliff then directed board members to his July activity report and summarized the MO OED 
conference he attended. 

There being no liaison or ex-officios present, Haffner moved to adjourn, Mason seconded and 
the motion carried unanimously. 

Upcoming calendar events: 
8/22 Expo Committee Meeting, 4 p.m. 
8/23 Leads Group 2, 9 a.m. 
8/24 MSSU Community Day 
8/25 &9/12 Golf Meeting 
8/26 Business After Hours with ArtWalkat The Palms, 5-6:30 p.m. 
8/30 Chamber 101, 9 a.m. 
8/31 CEL tour of Garrett Family Farm, 11:30 a.m.-1 p.m. 
9/1 Maple Leaf, 4 p.m. 
9/12 Monday Member Meet-up, 2 p.m. 
9/12 Leads Group 1, 3 p.m. . 
9/14 Non-profit Network, 9 a.m. 
9/14 Banquet Committee, 4 p.m. 
9/16 GolfTournament 
9/20 Customer Service Lunch and Learn, 11:30 a.m. 

The next meeting of the board Is scheduled for Thursday, September 15 at 7:30 a.m. at the 
Chamber. 

Minutes prepared by Neely Myers. 



AGENDAS 


STANDING 


COMMITTEES 




C:::ity e»-t=' 
c:::c:art .... c:ag~ 

Public Safety Committee - Agenda 
Monday -September 19, 2016 

5:30 p.m. at the Carthage Police Department 

Citizen Participation 
1. Chris Goodwin - concert Maple Leaf week. 
2. Caleb Stiles - Beer gardens on the square 

Fire Department 
1. Miscellaneous 

Police Department 
1. Ordinance regulating Rzr type vehicles 

Persons with disabilities who need special assistance - please contact the 
Fire Department at 417-237-7100, or the Police Department at 417-237-7200 

at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 



PUBLIC WORKS COMMI EE 

Public Works Department 623 E -r-h Carthage MO 64836 
Teie: (417)237-7010 Fax: (417)237-7011 
Email: pwd@carthagemo.gov 

"America's Maple LeafCity" 

AGENDA 

TUESDAY EVENING 


September 20,2016 - 5:30 P.M. 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 


Public Works Committee Meeting has been cancelled. 

Persons with disabilities who need special assistance - Ca/1417-237-7010 (voice) 

or 1-800-735-2466 (TDD via Relay Missouri) at least 48 hours prior to meeting date. 


Meeting is normally held the first and third Tuesday of each month 

Public Works Department, 623 E. -ph St. 


mailto:pwd@carthagemo.gov


----

COMMITTEE ON INSURANCE/AUDIT AND CLAIMS 


September 27, 2016 


4:45PM 


Carthage City Hall 


--Tentative Agenda -

Old Business 

1. Consider and Approval ofMinutes from Previous Meeting 

2. Review and Approval of the Claims Report 

New Business 

1. Consider and discuss amendments to the Purchasing Policy Manual. 

2. Staff Reports 

3. Other Business 

Adjournment 

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE 
CALL 417-2377000 (VOICE) OR 1-800-735-2466 (TOO VIA RELAY 
MISSOURI) AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING.) 

Posted 



AGENDAS 


SPECIAL 


COMMITTEES 


ANDBOARDS 




CARTHAGE 

PUBLIC UBRARY 

DRAFT 


CARTHAGE PUBLIC LI;RARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Tuesday, September 13 • 2016 5:15 p.m. 

CARTHAGE PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD ROOM 
612 S. Garrison Ave. 

AGENDA 
Roll Call of Members 

Minutes of the Last Meeting 

Financial Report 

Director's Progress and Service Report 

President's Message 

Council Liaison's Report 

Committee Reports 
Building Committee 

Budget Committee 


Community Relations 


By-Laws 


Library Gardens 


ADA Compliance 


Unfinished Business 

New Business 
Revise No Smoking Policy 

Payment of Bills 

Adjournment 



Cf!r!!!aPe
COM:riee~ 

Commerce· Community. Connection 

Board of Directors Meeting 
ThursdaYI September 15, 2016 

7:30 a.m. 

Vision Statement - To foster and facilitate the success of Carthage area businesses, 50 our community is financially 
healthy and the people living, working, and playing in Carthage can enjoy a higher quality oflife.. 

Mission Statement ~ To improve the overall business climate for our members and quality oflife for the community 
through sponsorship ofprograms which promote civic and economic development, stimulate growth, and support 
relevant political action. 

Guiding Principles 

• 	 The Chamber will continue to support our overall business climate for our members and quality of life for 
the community through sponsorship of programs which promote civic and economic development, 
stimulate growth and support relevant political action. In addition, the Chamber will focus on six goals 
that will aid citizens and businesses of Carthage. 

• 	 Actively pursue marketing and developing retail as well as industrial expansion, with emphasis in the 
Myers Park Development in partnership with the Carthage Economic Development Corporation (CEDC).. 
When appropriate, the board will make recommendations to the City Council or CeDC on development 
issues. 

• 	 Focus on retaining and creating quality jobs by visiting bUSinesses, retail, commercial and industrial 
throughout the year as well as (;ootinuing to work with the Carthage Technical Center on the National 
Career Readiness Certificate Program in pr.omoting it. 

• 	 Work in conjunction with interested parties to develop industrial land to attract and support a quality 
workforce. 

• 	 Continue to improve marketing and communications to our members. Engage and educate members and 
the public of Chamber activities, develOp a deeper presence with online media and focus efforts to 
enhance the Member 2 Member program. 

• 	 Develop stronger relationship with the. retail community and enhance participation. 
• 	 Support businesses and community organizations to renew retail efforts, support education programs and 

assist in business expansion. 

Agenda 
1. 	 Call to Order 

2. 	 Approval of August Minutes 

3. 	 Financial Report 

4. 	 Chairman's Input 

5. 	 Membership Report 

6. 	 Com m ittee Reports 
a. 	 Ambassadors - Rodney Hinds 
b. 	 Banquet - Robert Goar 
c. 	 Emerging leaders - Tina Hallmark 
d: 	 Expo - Roy Mason 
e. 	 Golf Scramble - Brian Schmidt 
f. 	 Maple leaf - Susan Wendleton 
g. 	 Marketing - Roy Mason 
h. 	 Public Policy - Susan Wendleton 



----------------------------------------

7. Old Business 
a. As needed 

8. New Business 
a. 2017 Board election 

9. President's Report 

10. Liaison Reports 

a. Jim Benton, Carthage Ministerial Alliance 

b. Wendi Douglas, CVB 

c. Jim Honey, Jasper County 

d. Jason Shelfer, City of Carthage 

11. Ex-officio Reports 

a. Chuck Bryant, CWEP 

b. Tom Short, City of Carthage 

12. Upcoming calendar items 

13. Closed Session as needed 

14. Next Regular Board Meeting - Thursday, October 20 

15. Adjourn 

POSTED: ____~___ BY: 

2016 Board of Directors meetings total = 8 
Susan Wendleton 6 Paul Eckels 7 CVB 3 
Steve Willis 6 Robert Goar 5 Carthage City Council 5 
Brian Schmidt 5 Dr. Jon Haffner 7 Jasper Co. Commission 2 
Rodney Hinds 4 Tina Hallmark 6 Ministerial Alliance 5 
Kenney Arnold 4 Roy Mason 7 City of Carthage 1 
Ryan Brunnert 2 Dr. Sean Smith 5 CWEP 3 



John Bartosh 302 S. Main ST 
Presiding Commissioner JASPER COUNTY COMMISSION Carthage, MO 64836 

Jim Honey Carthage: 417-358-0421 
Eastern District Commissioner Joplin: 417-625-4350 

Darieus K. Adams Toll Free: 800-404-0421 
Western District Commissioner Fax: 417+358-0483 

COMMISSION AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 


9:00A.M. 

JASPER COUNTY COURTHOUSE ROOM 101 


1. 	 CALL TO ORDER 


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


PRAYER 


2. 	 ROLL CALL 

3. 	 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

4. 	 PRESENTATIONS 


OLiberty National Insurance-Sam Hawley/Tim Sellens 


5. 	 REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

6. 	 ELECTED OFFICIALS/CITIZENS REQUESTS 

7. 	 COMMISSIONER'S REPORTS 

8. 	 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

9. 	 NEW BUSINESS 

10. 	PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION FROM AUDIENCE WHEN ADDRESSED YOU WILL BE ALLOWED THREE MINUTES TO 


SPEAK. 


ELECTED OFFICIALS/CITIZENS WISHING TO BE HEARD UNDER ELECTED OFFICIALS/CITIZENS REQUEST MUST 


REQUEST TO SPEAK TO COMMISSION BY 4:00 P.M. ON THE FRIDAY PRIOR TO THE COMMISSION MEETING ON 


TUESDAY. CITIZENS SPEAKING TIME WILL BE LIMITED TO FIVE MINUTES. 


THE NEWS MEDIA MAY OBTAIN COPIES OF THIS NOTICE BY CONTACTING: 


COMMISSION OFFICE, 302 S. MAIN, COURTHOUSE, ROOM 101, CARTHAGE 417-358-0421 


NOTICE POSTED SEPTEMBER 16, 2016 AT 4:00 P.M. 	 (RSMO 610.020) 




John Bartosh 302 S. Main ST 
Presiding Commissioner JASPER COUNTY COMMISSION Carthage, MO 64836 

Jim Honey Carthage: 417-358-0421 
Eastern District Commissioner Joplin: 417-625-4350 

Darieus K. Adams 	 Toll Free: 800-404-0421 
Western District Commissioner 	 Fax: 417+358-0483 

COMMISSION AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 27, 2016 


9:00A.M. 

JASPER COUNTY COURTHOUSE ROOM 101 


1. 	 CALL TO ORDER 


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


PRAYER 


2. ROLL CALL 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

4. PRESENTATIONS 

o2015 County Audit Report -Gene Mense of Mense, Churchwell & Mense, CPAs. 

5. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

6. ElECTED OFFICIALS/CITIZENS REQUESTS 

7. COMMISSIONER'S REPORTS 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

9. I\lEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION FROM AUDIENCE WHEN ADDRESSED YOU WILL BE ALLOWED THREE MINUTES TO 


SPEAK. 


ElECTED OFFICIALS/CITIZENS WISHING TO BE HEARD UNDER ELECTED OFFICIALS/CITIZENS REQUEST MUST 


REQUEST TO SPEAK TO COMMISSION BY 4:00 P.M. ON THE FRIDAY PRIOR TO THE COMMISSION MEETING ON 


TUESDAY. CITIZENS SPEAKING TIME WILL BE LIMITED TO FIVE MINUTES. 


THE NEWS MEDIA MAY OBTAIN COPIES OF THIS NOTICE BY CONTACTING: 


COMMISSION OFFICE, 302 S. MAIN, COURTHOUSE, ROOM 101, CARTHAGE 417-358-0421 


NOTICE POSTED SEPTEMBER 23, 2016 AT 4:00 P.M. 	 (RSMO 610.020) 




-- - --- - --- - -- -- - -- -- ---- -
I 

~--- --~~---- --~-~--~----~-------~~~-~ ~-- ~~-----~ 

______ - __________~____ - _____________________________~______ ____ ___ ________ _ ___-, 

CORRESPONDENCE 

, --- - -- ----- -- - ------------ --- - --- ----- - - --- - ------- --- -- ---- ~-----~- -----~~-------

~-~- ----- -- - ------ -- -- - - ------ - ~ ~----- - - - -- --------------- ---- - -- - -- -- -- - --- -- - -------~ 



Carthage Public Library 

Statement of Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets - cash basis 


July 31, 2016 


ASSETS 

Current assets 
Treasurer's cash 
Checking account - Liberty Bank 
Petty cash 
Circulation desk cash 
Internet desk cash 

Total current assets 

Property and equipment 
Machinery and Equipment 
Improvements 
Accumulated depredation 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Net assets 
Unrestrlcted net assets 
Temporarily restricted net assets: 
Library Gardens 
Carthage Community Foundation 
CPL Development Foundation 
Boylan Grant 
Steadley Trust 
Debbie Putnam - Ebooks 

Summer reading program 

Summer reading program - MOSL grant 

Racing to Read Grant 

CPL CoHection Development Grant 

Spotlight on Literacy Grant 

Operational reserves 

Change in net assets 


Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

~ 

$ 535,310.66 
23,032.37 

240.00 
. 42.10 

24.05 
558.649.18 


40,571.80 
120,809.29 

(9.046.12) 
152.334.21 

$ 710,984.15 


$ 292,803.01 

7,930.29 
443.26 

40,828.08 
1.676.80 

21,897.24 
7,739.74 

806.20 
(691.06) 

11,198.16 
(2,478.18) 
39,865.55 

195,998.47 
92.966.59 

71Q,984.15 

$ 710,984.15 

See accountan~s compiJation report 
2 

http:710,984.15
http:71Q,984.15
http:92.966.59
http:195,998.47
http:39,865.55
http:2,478.18
http:11,198.16
http:7,739.74
http:21,897.24
http:1.676.80
http:40,828.08
http:7,930.29
http:292,803.01
http:710,984.15
http:152.334.21
http:9.046.12
http:120,809.29
http:40,571.80
http:558.649.18
http:23,032.37
http:535,310.66


Carthage Public Library 

Statements of Activities 


For the one montb ended July 31, 2016 


Changes munrestricted net lWets: 

Revenues, gains and other support 

Fine income 

Copier income 
Non-resident fee income 
Book sale income 

Postage income 

Tax income 
£nterest income 
State aid 

Park and storm water tax 

Sur tax: 

Other income 

Donations 
DonationHeStricted 
Fax income 
Payment for lost books 

Total revenues, gains and other support 

2016 

Md. 

$ 919.09 
472.50 

720.00 
174.40 

0.00 
725.51 

192.39 
0.00 

151,118.29 
0.00 

70.93 

lO.W 
0.00 

160.20 
16.50 

154,519.91 

Monthly 

~ 

$ 583.33 
583.33 

666.67 
250.00 

13.89 

16.416.67 

83.33 

583.33 
36,166,67 

833.33 

13.89 
0.00 

916.67 

83.33 
13.89 

57.208.33 

Monthly 

yanana; 

$ 335.76 
(110.83) 

53.33 

(75.60) 
(13.89) 

(15,691.16) 
109.06 

(583.33) 

114,951.62 
(833.33) 

51.04 

10.10 
(916.67) 

16.81 
2.61 

97,311.58 

See accountant's compilation report. 
3 

http:97,311.58
http:114,951.62
http:15,691.16
http:57.208.33
http:16.416.67
http:154,519.91
http:151,118.29


Carthage Public Library 

Statements of Activities 


For the one month ended July 31, 2016 


Expenses ud losses 
Salaries 
FICA 

Lager 
Total payroll expenses 

Audio-visuals 

Books 

Chlldren's books 

Periodicals 

Ebooks 

Utilities 

Postage 

Telephone 

Insurance 

Furniture and equipment 

Maintenance and repair 

Dues and travel 


Supplies 

Legal and accounting 

Contract fees 

Programs. children 

Programs, teens 


Programs, adult 

Infonnation technology (IT) 


ADA Compliance 

Employee goodwiU 

Advertising 

Depreciation and amortization 


Total other expenses 

Total expenses and losses 

Jncrease(decrease) in I.I11l'llSIricted net II$sets 

Transfers to capitalized assets 
Net assets transfered from restrictions 

Increase (decrease) in WlJ"CStricted net assets 

2016 

M!md:I. 

30,759.56 
2,353.11 

982.84 
34,Q95.57 

297.00 
2,76lJ.77 
1,029.37 

412.61 
3,200.00 
2,061.80 

0.00 
658.42 

1,980.00 
4,598.46 

12,895.67 
529.63 
289.52 

0.00 
4,999.46 
1,315.05 

182.65 
169.51 

0.00 
0.00 

76.86 
0.00 

676.68 

Monthly 

~ 

36,916.67 
2,616.67 
11533.33 

41,066.67 

333.33 
2,500.00 
1,333.33 

500.00 
291.66 

2,916.67 
125.00 
704.17 

1,500.00 
4,625.00 
1,666.67 

250.00 
1,416.67 

583.33 
2,937.50 
1,433.33 

83.33 
312.50 
416.67 

4.17 
250.00 
166.67 
83.33 

Monthly 

Yarill~ 

6,IS7.11 
263.50 
550.49 

6,97 l.l0 

3633 
(26lJ.77) 

303.96 
87.39 

(2,908.34) 
854.87 
125.00 
45.75 

(480.00) 
26.54 

(11,229.00) 
(279.63) 

1,127.15 
583.33 

(2,061.96) 

11828 
(99.32) 
142.99 
416.67 

4.17 
173.14 
166.67 

{59H5l 
38.133.46 24,433.33 {13z700.131 

72.229.03 65z500.00 (6~729·03l 

82,350.88 (8.291.67) 90.642.55 

10,615.71 0.00 10,615.71 

10281.46 81291.67 'b,089.79 
1031348.05 0.00 103.348.05 

See accountant's compilation report. 
4 

http:2,061.96
http:1,127.15
http:11,229.00
http:2,908.34
http:6,IS7.11
http:1,433.33
http:2,937.50
http:1,416.67
http:1,666.67
http:4,625.00
http:1,500.00
http:2,916.67
http:1,333.33
http:2,500.00
http:41,066.67
http:11533.33
http:2,616.67
http:36,916.67
http:1,315.05
http:4,999.46
http:12,895.67
http:4,598.46
http:1,980.00
http:2,061.80
http:3,200.00
http:1,029.37
http:2,76lJ.77
http:34,Q95.57
http:2,353.11
http:30,759.56


Carthage Public Library 

Statement of Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets - cash basis 


August 31, 2016 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
Treasurers cash 
Checking account - Liberty Bank 
Petty cash 
Circulation desk cash 
Internet desk cash 

Total current assets 

Property and equipment 
Machinery and Equipment 
Improvements 
Accumulated depreciation 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Neta.ssets 
Unrestricted net assets 
Temporarily restricted net assets: 
Library Gardens 
Carthage Community Foundation 
CPL Development Foundation 
Boylan Grant 
Steadley Trust 
Debbie Putnam - Ebooks 
Summer reading program 
Summer reading program - MOSL grant 
Racing to Read Grant 
CPL Collection Development Grant 
Spotlight on Literacy Grant 
Operational reserves 
Change in net assets 

TotaJ net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2Ql2. 

$ 513,017.32 
26.757.59 

240.00 
42.10 
24105 

540.081.06 

40,571.80 
134,247.39 

{9*778.78) 
Ig~*04!Ml 

$ 705a121.47 

$ 292,803.01 

7,930.29 
443.26 

40;828.08 
1,676.80 

21,897.24 
7,739.74 

806.20 
(691.06) 

11,l98.16 
(2,478.18) 
39,865.55 

195,998.47 
87.103.91 

705.121.47 


$ 705.121.47 


See accountant's compilation report. 
2 

http:705.121.47
http:705.121.47
http:87.103.91
http:195,998.47
http:39,865.55
http:2,478.18
http:11,l98.16
http:7,739.74
http:21,897.24
http:1,676.80
http:40;828.08
http:7,930.29
http:292,803.01
http:705a121.47
http:9*778.78
http:134,247.39
http:40,571.80
http:540.081.06
http:26.757.59
http:513,017.32


Carthage Public Library 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses aod Other Changes in Net Assets ... cash basis 


For the one month aod two months ended August 31, 2016 

2016 Monthly Monthly 2016 Annual Annual 

M2mb. ~ VLY:iilll~ Y~iQ Date ~ :u.r:iance 

Chanaes in unrestricted net assets: 
Revenues, gains and other support 

Fine income $ 768.78 S 583.33 $ \85.45 $ 1,687,87 $ 7,000.00 $ (5,312.13) 
Copier income 802.05 583.33 218.72 1,214.55 7,000.00 (5.725.45) 
Non-resident fee income 760.00 666.67 ... 93.33 1,480.00 8,000.00 (6,520.00) 
Book sale income 264.20 250.00 14.20 438.60 3,000.00 (2,561.40) 
postage income 4.48 13.89 (9.41) 4.48 16M6 (162.18) 
Tax Income 755.24 16,416.67 (15,661.43) 1,480.75 197,000.00 (195,519.25) 
Interest income 207.52 83.33 l24.19 399.91 1,000.00 (600.09) 
State aid 0,00 583.33 (583.33) 0.00 7,000.00 (7,000.00) 
Park and storm water tax 29,776.28 36.166.67 (6,390,39) 180,894.57 434,000.00 (253.J05.43) 
Surtax 0.00 833.33 (833.33) 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 
Other income 69.50 13.89 55.61 140.43 166.67 (26.24) 
Donations 3,025.25 0.00 3,025.25 3,035.35 0.00 3.035.35 
~<:ted 8,860.00 916.61 7,943.33 8,860.00 1l.000.00 (2,I40JlO) 
Fax income 252.00 83.33 168.67 412.20 1,000,00 (587.80) 
Payment for lost books 30.26 13.89 16.37 46·Z2 166&7 !1l21!W 

Total revenues, gains and other support 45,575.56 51.208J3 ~ll.632.71) 2001155.47 686.500.00 (486,344.5:1) 

See accountant's compilation report. 
3 

http:686.500.00
http:2001155.47
http:ll.632.71
http:45,575.56
http:1l.000.00
http:8,860.00
http:7,943.33
http:8,860.00
http:3.035.35
http:3,035.35
http:3,025.25
http:3,025.25
http:10,000.00
http:10,000.00
http:253.J05.43
http:434,000.00
http:180,894.57
http:36.166.67
http:29,776.28
http:7,000.00
http:7,000.00
http:1,000.00
http:195,519.25
http:197,000.00
http:1,480.75
http:15,661.43
http:16,416.67
http:2,561.40
http:3,000.00
http:6,520.00
http:8,000.00
http:1,480.00
http:5.725.45
http:7,000.00
http:1,214.55
http:5,312.13
http:7,000.00


Cartbage Public Library 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Other Changes in Net Assets - cash basis 


For the one montb and two montbs ended August 31, 2016 


2016 Monthly Monthly 2016 Annual AnnuaJ 

Mml.d:l. ~ Vw:iIYl!O~ :1_11:1 Date ~ ~ance 
Expenses lind losses 

Salaries 31,999.20 36,916.67 4,917.47 62.158.76 443,000.00 380,241.24 
FICA 2,448.44 2,616.67 J68.23 4,801.61 31.400.00 26,598.39 
Lager 1.226,27 1~33J3 ~06J6 2J.Q2·11 IBI~'OO I6aI90. 19 

Total payroll expenses 351674.61 41 1066.67 S~92.06 69,no.18 426800.00 423,029.82 

Audio-visuals 271.64 333.33 61.69 568.64 4,000.00 3.431.36 
Books 1.962.78 2,500;00 537.22 4,123.55 30,000.00 25,276.45 
Children's books 70.89 1,333.33 1,262.44 1,100.26 16.000.00 14,899.74 
Periodicals 40.01 500.00 459.99 45262 6.000.00 5,547.38 
Ebooks 0.00 291.66 291.66 3,200.00 3,500.00 300.00 
Utilities 2,474.06 2,916.67 442.61 4,535.86 35,000.00 30,464.14 
Postage 170.23 125.00 (45.23) 170.23 1,500.00 1,329.77 
Telephone 72.92 704.17 631.25 731.34 8,450.00 7,718.66 
lnsurance 0.00 1,500.00 1.500.00 1,980.00 18,000.00 16,(l20.00 
Fumitureand equipment 1,910.61 4,625.00 2,71439 6,509.07 55.500.00 48,990.93 
Maintenance and repair 15,955.52 1,666.67 (14,288.85) 28,85 LJ 9 20,000.00 (8,851.19) 
Dues and travel 727.50 250.00 (477.50) 1,257.13 3,000.00 1,742.87 
Supplies 2,828.04 1,416.67 (1,411.37) 3,117.56 17.000.00 13.882.44 
Legal and accounting 0.00 58333 583.33 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 
Contract fees 565.08 2,937.50 2,372.42 5,564.54 35,250.00 29,685.46 
Programs. children 643.57 1,433.33 789.76 1,958.62 17,200.00 15,24t.38 
Programs, teens 11.98 83.33 71.35 194.63 1,000.00 805.31 
ProgT'31tlli, adult 
Infonnntion technology <n) 
ADA Compliance 

0.00 
656.00 

0.00 

312.SO 
416.61 

4.17 

312.SO 
(239.33) 

4.17 

169.51 
656.00 

0.00 

3,750.00 
5,000.00 

50.00 

3,580.49 
4,344.00 

50.00 
Employee goodwill 108.24 250.00 14 t.76 185.10 3,000.00 2,814.90 
Advertising 0.00 166.67 166.67 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 
Depreciation and amortization U2.66 8J·~J !649Jll M~.34 laOOO•OO {409,;}!) 

Total other expenses 29.201.73 24.433.33 {4.768.40} 67~3S.19 293~OO.00 225!864.81 

Total expenses and losses 64~76.34 65.500.00 623.66 1371105.37 1861000.00 648d2!.63 

Inc (dec) in unrestricted net asSc.."tS 

before transfers (19,300.78) (8,291.67) (11,009.11) 63,050.10 (99,soo.00) 162.550.10 

Transfers to capitalized assets 13,438.10 0.00 13,438.10 24,053.81 0.00 24,053.81 
Net as.'iets tmnsfered from restrictions 20,849.75 8,291.67 12,558.08 31,231.21 99.500.00 (68,268.79) 
Net assets transferred to restricted {8.860.00} 0.00 {81860·00} {82860·002 0.00 (8~860.00l 

Inc (dec) in unrestricted net assets 61127.07 0.00 6~127.07 1091475.12 0.00 109,475.12 

See accountant's compilation report 
4 

http:648d2!.63
http:1861000.00
http:1371105.37
http:65.500.00
http:64~76.34
http:423,029.82
http:426800.00
http:69,no.18
http:351674.61
http:26,598.39
http:31.400.00
http:4,801.61
http:2,616.67
http:2,448.44
http:380,241.24
http:443,000.00
http:62.158.76
http:4,917.47
http:36,916.67
http:31,999.20


Director's Progress and Service Report 

September 2016, Julie Y ocks:y 

We have an empty chair at our Board meeting tonight, and as we will miss our friend and very 

special library advocate, we hope Steve's family realizes how important he had become to the Library. 

He always greeted everyone with a smile and did a wonderful job reporting library news back to the City 

CounciL Steve Leibrand was a friend to many, and ht; will be missed. 

School is back in session, Story Time has resumed, our audit is complete. Open House nights 

have begu~ our Citizenship adult class is full, and life is wonderful at the Library! A library needs 

children and this month especially we have tons ofchildren. Holding seven Open House nights in 

collaboration with the Carthage School District and St. Ann's is bringing in tons offamilies. Children 

are learning about the library and for some of them, getting their rust library cards. The sounds of 

children giggling and being excited about what they see, makes us all happy. We are building life-long 

library supporters. [was invited to meet with all of the school administrators early in September to 

share library news with them. It was a great opportunity to let them know just how unique our situation 

is here in Carthage. The level ofcoUaboration between school and library in our community is rare and 

much appreciated by our State Library. My goal when we began our adult literacy and citizenship class 

was to have 15 people enrolled within a three year period. We are currently enrolled 13 adults, and we 

have a wonderful opportunity to add another instructor in the near future. The Joplin Globe spent an 

entire evening with one ofour classes, interviewing the students and documenting their personal stories. 

Listening to these people reflect on their lives, and what this Library has come to mean to them is very 

humbling. 

Fall is full of great events at the Library. Check us out on our website and Facebook for details. 

Respectfully submitted, 

rlj~ 




An employee who does not satisfactorily complete the probationary period will be terminated 
and will not receive any payment for accumulated sick leave or vacation leave. 

IX. 	 Mandatory Retirement Age 
No definite consideration has been given to a mandatory retirement age. Retirement is 
necessary when the employee is no longer able to capably perform his or her duties. 

X. Overtime 
A. 	 The approval of the Director is required to work in excess of the SCheduled hours. 

B. 	 State and Federal laws will govern the payment of overtime. 

XI. Controlled Substances. Food. etc. 
A. 	 Smoking and the use of drugs, including alcohol, are strictly prohibited in and on library 

property. For more information, please see the library Drug-free Workplace Policy. 
Change to read: 
Smoking, the use of drugs and alcohol as well as the use of tobacco products are not 
allowed in the building or on library grounds. This includes. but is not limited to, electronic 
cigarettes, electronic vaping devices. personal vaporizers or electronic nicotine delivery 
systems which stimulate tobacco smoking. 

B. 	 Staff may keep food and soft drinks in deSignated areas out of the view of patrons. 

XII. Inclement Weather and Other Emergencies 

In cases of inclement weather, the library will be closed when the Carthage Public 
Schools are forced to close. If we are closed, no overdue fines will be accrued that 
day. 

After the first day. we will evaluate the road conditions and will reopen as soon as 
possible. even if schools remain closed. 

If problems arise which prevent the opening of the Library. the Director will notify 
employees as soon as possible. This time will not be deducted from the leave time of 
employees, and employees will be paid for hours scheduled. 

If the library is open and employees are unable to work because of transportation or 
inclement weather problems, they will have their absence charged against their available 
vacation leave. If all vacation leave has been used their absence will be without pay. 

Dress Code 



A. 	 While on the job. library employees are to present a neat. clean and welj..groomed 
appearance at all times. 

B. 	 Dress must be appropriate for the type of work, and not offensive to the public. If an 
employee is uncertain about the suitability of any item of apparel. it is advisable to consult 
the library Director. 

C. 	 All garments are required to be clean and in good condition and shall have no holes, 
slashes or rips. 

D. 	 Types of attire that are inappropriate for all desk and office staff: 
SWeat suits or other athletic wear 
Shorts of any kind. including dress shorts 
Excessively bare shirts 
Bare feet or flip flops. For safety reasons it is recommended that sandals not be worn it 
your duties include working the desks or shelving. 

E. 	 The only acceptable buttons, logos, sticJ<ers or other accessory worn must be for 
promotions of the library. 

F. 	 If an employee comes to work dressed inappropriately, he or she will be sent home to 
change. The employee will not be paid for the time required to go home and change. 

G. 	 All employees will wear name tags/badges while on duty, unless they are wearing the 
approved carthage Public Library logo shirts. 


(Remove item) G. No Tattoos 


XIII. 	 Pay Periods and Pay 

Time and Attendance 	 April. 2015 

Time records cover two week pay period. 

Accurately recording time worked is the responsibility of every employee. Federal and state laws require 
Carthage Public Library to keep accurate records of time worked by each employee. 

All hourly employees and salaried employees are required to complete an individual time sheet by using 
automated time clock system showing the dally hours worked. Failure to clock In and out correctly and 
timely. or to include clocking in and out for lunch break, is viewed as falsification of time and attendance 
records. Employees are required to clock in seven (1) minutes prior to their work schedule or seven (1) 
minutes after their work schedule ends. Special departments may have special clock in and clock out 
times as Specified by library Director. 

You must accurately record the time you begin and end work, as well as the beginning and ending time of 
eaCh meal period. You must also record the beginning and ending time of any departure from work for 
personal reasons. Overtime work must always be approved before it is performed. 

All employees must have vacation andlor leave without pay approved by library Director prior to time off. 
Vacation requests must be submitted to library Director thirty (30) days prior to request vacation dates. 

Altering, falsifying or tampering with pay records or recording time on another employee's time record is 
prohibited and will result in disciplinary action. 

A $5.00 fee will be charged to the employee if they lose or destroy their time card. 

XIV. 	 Staff Conduct 

A. Employees are required to keep accurate records of time worked. 
B. Time sheets are not to be completed in advance of time worked. 



CIRCULATtON REPORT for August 2016 
--------~~-------------

New Books/Periodicals 

Adult Books 149 

Adult Periodicals 85 

VA Books 20 

VA Periodicals 0 

Juvenile Books 63 

Juv Periodicals 11 

Totals 328 

New Applications 

Adult 95 

Juvenile 40 

Total 135 

Circulation 

Books 

Periodicals 

Audio 

Visual 

eBooks 

In House Use 

Totals 

Courier 

Circulation Total 

Adult 

2300 

72 


123 

944 

564 


223 


4226 


Lending 
401 

VA 

343 

0 

0 


. 

62 


. 

405 


Borrowing 
246 

Juvenile Tota' 

2131 4774 

2 74 

46 169 

- 944 

69 695 

. 223 

2248 6879 

Total 
647 

7526 

Leaming Express NewsBank Ebscohost HeritageQuest Total 

14 198 13 101 326 

Computer Use 

Adult 970 

Adult Reference 48 

Juvenile 173 

Tablets 45 

AWE 408 

Teen Laptops 140 

Wireless 23 

Total 1807 

Adult VA Juvenile Spanish Total 

Programs 0 0 1 11 12 

Attendees 0 0 6 30 36 

Requests Filled 

ILL Requests Made 1 0 

ILL Requests Rec'd 156 0 

AWE Computer Sessions 
Bilingual Computer Other Computers Total Sessions 

114 294 408 

Adult VA Juvenile Total 

Mending 6 2 38 46 

Discards 252 0 36 288 

Corrective Processing 15 0 7 22 



8:22AM Carthage Chamber of Commerce 

09/09/16 Balance Sheet 
Accrual Basis As of August 31,2016 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 


Checking/Savings 
General Checking 
Money Market 
Petty Cash 

Total Checking/Savings 

Accounts Receivable 
1200' Accounts Receivable 

Total Accounts Receivable 

Other Current Assets 
Maple Leaf Account 
Prepaid Insurance - Business 
1499 . Undeposited Funds 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Fixed Assets 
Accumlated Depreciation 
Building 
Building Improvements 
Land 
Office Equipment 
Office Equipment - Copier 

Total Fixed Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

2000 . Accounts Payable 

Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 
Accrued PTO 
Lease Payable - Copier 
2100 • Payroll Liabilities 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Long Tenn Liabilities 
UMB Building Loan 

Total Long Tenn Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 

3900 . Retained Earnings 

Net Income 


Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Aug 31, 16 

11,809.00 
53,944.28 

200.00 

65,953.28 

17,390.96 

17,390.96 

79,470.92 
5,355.17 
1,546.00 

86,372.09 

169,716.33 

-81,450.20 
222,745.00 

19,112.39 
28,000.00 

9,252.14 
8,742.83 

206,402.16 

376,118.49 

-120.00 

-120.00 

716.73 
4,554.04 

26,703.07 

31,973.84 

31,853.84 

107,894.86 

107,894.86 

139,748.70 

214,006.99 
22,362.80 

236,369.79 

376,118.49 

Page 1 

~ 

http:376,118.49
http:236,369.79
http:22,362.80
http:214,006.99
http:139,748.70
http:107,894.86
http:107,894.86
http:31,853.84
http:31,973.84
http:26,703.07
http:4,554.04
http:376,118.49
http:206,402.16
http:8,742.83
http:9,252.14
http:28,000.00
http:19,112.39
http:222,745.00
http:81,450.20
http:169,716.33
http:86,372.09
http:1,546.00
http:5,355.17
http:79,470.92
http:17,390.96
http:17,390.96
http:65,953.28
http:53,944.28
http:11,809.00


8:23 AM Carthage Chamber of Commerce 

09/09/16 Profit & Loss 
Accrual Basis August 2016 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

Economic Development contract 
Interest Incomes 
Maple Leaf Income 
Membership dues 

New member 
Renewal 

Total Membership dues 

Miscellaneous Income 
Registration fees 

Mulligans 
Team fee 
Registration fees· Other 

Total Registration fees 

Sponsorships 
Golf contest 
Golf Grand 
Golf hole 
Sponsorships. Other 

Total Sponsorships 

Tenant Agreement 

Total Income 

Gross Profit 

Expense 
Advertising & publicity 

Bank & credit cerd fees 

Car allowance 
Contract services 
Depreciation Expense. 
Dues & subscriptions 
Equipment lease 
Food & drinks 

Teacher luncheon 

Total Food & drinks 

Insurance· health 
Interest expense 
Internet & website 
Maple Leaf expense 
Meals & entertainment 
Mileage 
OffIce supplies 

OffIce equipment 
OffIce supplies· Other 

Total Office supplies 

Professional fees 
Repairs & maintenance 
Salaries & wages 

Payroll taxes 
Salaries & wages· Other 

Total Salaries & wages 

Seminars & conferences 
Travel 

16 

9,310.00 
25.99 

3,303.11 

301.50 
4,767.96 

5.069.46 

35.00 

160.00 
2,700.00 

200.00 

3.060.00 

1,000.00 
2.100.00 

600.00 
1,000.00 

4.700.00 

410:00 

25,913.56 

25,913.56 

853.70 

27.40 

200.00 
'22.50 
667.01 

34.38 
486.59 

403.56 

403.56 

996.50 
345.41 
79.94 

973.97 
104.11 
102.63 

75.00 
115.20 

190.20 

500.00 
791.97 

730.22 
10.212.60 

,10,942.82 

294.00 

Page 1 

(; 

http:10,942.82
http:10.212.60
http:25,913.56
http:25,913.56
http:4.700.00
http:1,000.00
http:2.100.00
http:1,000.00
http:3.060.00
http:2,700.00
http:5.069.46
http:4,767.96
http:3,303.11
http:9,310.00


~:23 AM Carthage Chamber of Commerce 
09/09/16 Profit & Loss 
Accrual Basis August 2016 

Aug 16 
------~~-~-----

Lodging 135.18 

Total Travel 135.18 

Utilities 754.31 
Write Offs 173.00 

Total Expense 19,079.18 

Net Ordinary Income 6,834.38 

Net Income 6,834.38 

Page 2 

1 



t 

J 

J 
8:25AM Carthage Chamber of Commerce 

09/09116 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 
Accrual Basis July through August 2016 

Jul- Aug 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget------..--"~- ---- --------_ ...- ,- ..-~--.---.---. 
Ordinary Income/Expense 

Income 
Directory 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Donations 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 100.0% 
Economic Development contract 18,620.00 18,620.00 0.00 100.0% 
Interest Incomes 47.17 41.22 5.95 114.4% 
Maple Leaf clearing account 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Maple Leaf Income 27,630.36 23,149.47 4,480.89 119.4% 
Membership dues 

New member 1,085.50 900.00 185.50 120.6% 
Renewal 6,891.46 8,181.00 -1,289.54 84.2% 
Membership dues· Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

Total Membership dues 7,976.96 9,081.00 -1,104.04 87.8% 

Miscellaneous Income 1,158.00 0.00 1,158.00 100.0% 
Postage 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Printing &copying 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Registration fees 

Christmas open house 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Expo Booth Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Mulllgans 160.00 240.00 -80.00 66.7% 
Putting contest 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Quarterly Luncheon 660.00 0.00 660.00 100.0% 
Sidewalk Sale 480.00 550.00 -70.00 87.3% 
Team fee 2,700.00 900.00 1,800.00 300.0% 
Ticket Sales 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Registration fees - Other 200.00 300.00 -100.00 66.7% 

Total Registration fees 4,200.00 1,990.00 2,210.00 211.1% 

Sponsorships 
Annual Banquet Sponsorship 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Beverage 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Bowling Sponsor 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.O°A, 
Business After Hours 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.0% 
Eggs & Issues 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Expo Sponsorship 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Friday Coffee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Golf cart 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Golf contest 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.0% 
Golf Grand 2,100.00 3,850.00 -1,750.00 54.5% 
Golf hole 600.00 500.00 100.00 120.0% 
Newsletter 0.00 197.50 -197.50 0.0% 
Quarterly Luncheon Sponsor 125.00 0.00 125.00 100.0% 
Trivia Sponsor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Sponsorships - Other 1,650.00 162.50 1,487.50 1,015.4% 

Total Sponsorships 5,475.00 5,960.00 -485.00 91.9% 

Tenant Agreement 820.00 820.00 0.00 100.0% 

Total Income 67,927.49 59,661.69 8,265.80 113.9% 

Gross Profit 67,927.49 59,661.69 8,265.80 113.9% 

Expense 
Advertising &publicity . 

Signs 0.00 250.00 -2fiO.00 0.0% 
Advertising &publicity - Other 1,353.70 1,216.70 137.00 111.3% 

Total Advertising &publicity 1,353.70 1,466.70 -113.00 92.3% 

Awards & prizes 
Flight prizes 0.00 0.00 0:00 0.0% 
Awards &prizes • Other 10.00 196.94 -186.94 5.1% 

Total Awards &prizes 10.00 196.94 . -186.94 5.1% 

Page 1 

'8' 

http:1,466.70
http:1,353.70
http:1,216.70
http:1,353.70
http:8,265.80
http:59,661.69
http:67,927.49
http:8,265.80
http:59,661.69
http:67,927.49
http:5,960.00
http:5,475.00
http:1,487.50
http:1,650.00
http:1,750.00
http:3,850.00
http:2,100.00
http:1,000.00
http:1,000.00
http:2,210.00
http:1,990.00
http:4,200.00
http:1,800.00
http:2,700.00
http:1,158.00
http:1,158.00
http:1,104.04
http:9,081.00
http:7,976.96
http:1,289.54
http:8,181.00
http:6,891.46
http:1,085.50
http:4,480.89
http:23,149.47
http:27,630.36
http:18,620.00
http:18,620.00
http:2,000.00
http:2,000.00




09109/16 

8:25AM Carthage Chamber of Commerce 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 

Accrual Basis July through August 2016 

_________0Jul.Aug 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 
-~-- .. -- ,----~---.~~- ---.---.

,Total Expense 45,564.69 48,580.76 ·3,016.07 93.8% 
.--~~--- ----~---,-

Net Ordinary Income 22,362.80 11,080.93 11,281.87 201.8% 
---"-----,- -, ----------. 

Net Income 22,362.80 11,080.93 11,281.87 201.8% 

Page 3 

10 

http:11,281.87
http:11,080.93
http:22,362.80
http:11,281.87
http:11,080.93
http:22,362.80
http:3,016.07
http:48,580.76
http:45,564.69


.~ 

I 

I 

OF COMMERCE 

Economic Development Project ActivitY Tracker 
August 2016 

The activity tracker measures the year-to-date level ofeconomic development project activity (prospects) 
in the Carthage area. The Carthage Chamber serves as the lead business expansion and attraction entity 
for the Carthage area. 

2016 Total Prospects (includes new and existing companies) .......................... 19 

Active Projects .................................................................................................. 17 


• Meeting with City Administrator on Myers Park project 
• Correspondence with MBL Development on Myers Park project 
• Discussion with Brian Schmidt on Myers Park project 
• Meetings with 10caJ business regarding possible expansion 
• Meeting with representatives from Congressman Long's office 
• Meeting with Chad Reed regarding Vision Carthage project 
• Meeting with representatives from Carthage Technical School. regarding Manufacturing Day 
• Meeting with Leggett and Platt representatives regarding Manufacturing Day 
• Attended Missouri Department of Economic Development conference 
• Attended Foreign Trade Zone announcement in Neosho 

The Carthage Chamber ofCommerce is a member ofthe Joplin Regional Partnership (JRP). a regional effort in Southwest 
Missouri and Southeast Kansas to bring businesses to the area. JRP is contacted by the Missouri Partnership who markets 
Missouri nationally and internationally to companies wanting to move their facility to another location. The Carthage Chamber 
ofCommerce is contacted by JRP for available buildings and land. 

Carthage Chamber of Commerce • 402 S. Garrison Avenue • Carthage, Missouri 64836 • (417) 358-2373 

}2 




The Carthage Chanlber of Comnlerce Presents 

Annual Banquet 2017 

Friday, January 20, 2017 

SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES 

Exclusive Spotlight Sponsorship $1000 

• 	 Logo featured on the invitation and RSVP card mailed to 450 Chamber members 
• 	 Company representative will be invited to give five-minute presentation 
• 	 Logo printed in the program distributed to up to 375 attendees 
• 	 Company name will be prominently associated with the event at www.CarthageChamber.com 
• 	 Logo included in slideshow displayed during the event's social hour 
• 	 Ann'ouncement in radio promotions and during the evening's program 
• 	 This sponsorship will include a reserved table and ten reservations for the event 

Industry-Exclusive Dinner Sponsorship $750 
• 	 Logo printed in the program distributed to up to 375 attendees 
• 	 Logo displayed on signage at the event 
• 	 Logo included in slideshow displayed during the event's social hour 
• Announcement in radio promotions and during the evening's program 
., This sponsorship will include six reservations for the event 

Dinner Sponsorship w /reserved table for ten $900 

Industry-Exclusive Social Hour Sponsorship $750 
• 	 Logo printed in the program distributed to up to 375 attendees 
• 	 Logo displayed on signage at the event 
• 	 Logo included in slideshow displayed during the event's social hour 
• 	 Announcement in radio promotions and during the ev~ning's program 
• 	 This sponsorship will include six reservations for the event 

Social Hour Sponsorship w /reserved table for ten $900 

Platinum Sponsorship $500 Entertainment Sponsorship $250 
• 	 Logo featured in programs distributed to attendees • Company name listed in the programs 
• 	 Logo included in a pre-event slideshow , • Company name included in pre-event slideshow 
• 	 Announcement in radio promotions and during the • Announcement in radio promotions and during the 

evening's program evening's program 
• 	 This sponsorship will include four reservations for the event • This sponsorship will include two reservations for the event 

Platinum Sponsorship w /reserved table for ten $700 Award Sponsorship $250 
• Company name listed in the programs with award Gold Sponsorship $200 • Announcement in radio promotions and during the 

• 	 Company name listed in the programs evening's program 
• 	 Company name included in pre-event slideshow .. This sponsorship will include one reservation for the event 
• 	 Announcement in radio promotions and during the for the award presenter 

evening's program 
• 	 This sponsorship will include two reservations for the event Reserved Table for Ten $360 

Gold Sponsorship w/reserved table for ten $450 • Reservations for 10 guests 
• 	 Company name on a reserved table 

, 	 . 

Sponsorship deadline is December 9, 2016. 

For more information, contact Mary Jo at 417-358-2373 or mjlitt]e@carthagechamber.com. 


mailto:mjlitt]e@carthagechamber.com
http:www.CarthageChamber.com


Tuesday, November 15· 

& Wednesday, November 16 

8 a.m.-l p.m. both days 
CWEP Community Room, 627 W. Centennial 

Are you a RED? Are you a YELLOW? Are you a BLUE? Are you af.9i1iii? 
Sponsored by: 

According to Van and Ta mmy Benson, "85% of employees who lost their jobs, last year, were 
fired because they couldn't get along with people, not because they lacked the necessaryGFREEMAN 
skills or expertise to do the job. 35% of the typical manager's day Is taken up by PEOPLE 
PROBLEMSI It doesn't have to be this way.~;;~ 
"All of life is about relationships, and business is no exception. Great managers, and 
successful business relationships, are not created by sheer luck. It takes hard work. BadH.E. WILLIAMS,INC. 
managers, and poor businesS relationships, don't just happen either. Many times people lookSdJmIdt A1IocIates, p.c.

CcnIfIiId PiIbIk: ;A(:c1lU/1111P . the other way rather than focus on the negative truth about where the conflict comes from,.,....----==......• and how it can be successfully resolved." 

All Chamber members ages 2J-40 are invited to learn about Motive Matters and The Color Code, 
to improve your personal and career relationships by learning what motivates you and the people 
around you. Thanks to our sponsors, this valuable training is 
being offered FREE to'a very limited number of eEL COLORCODE 
members. Reservations are REQUIRED by November 1. .CIt/. Pmo"alJly.cl4...... 

~leQdm
For Info or to register. contact Mary/0 at3S8-Z373 0': mjllttle(jjlcarthagecl!amber.com. 

Carthage Emerging Leaders. 

PEOPLE YOU EED.,O KIIOW 


http:mjllttle(jjlcarthagecl!amber.com


EVERY=:: Cazt1!8e
CHAMBeR OF COMMERCE MOMENT 

•.COUNTS 
UFTING THE SPIRITS OF AMERrCA'S 


TROOPS AND THEIR FAMILIES 


"usa" Business Expo and Home Show 2017 
Congregation of the Mother Co-Redemptrix (CMC), 1900 S. Grand, Carthage 


Booth set-up Friday, March 10th 12:30 p.m. - 4:30 p.m. 


Fridav, March 10th 5 p.m. - 8 p.m. (Open to the Business Community) 


Saturday, March 11th 10a.m. - 3 p.m. (Open to the Public) 


Booth Registration 
Business Name: _______________________---'_ 

Contact Name: _________________________ 

MailingAddress: ________________________ 

Phone Number: -:.... _________,Fax Number: __________ 

E-mall: ___________________________ 

Type ofBusiness: ________________________ 

Booths include back draping and side divider draping. Fee includes an 8' skirted table, 2 chairs, and a waste can. 

Member Non-Member 

BX10 $200.00 ____ $365.00 

Electrical Outlet (110/115 single-phase) $10.00 

Grand Total: --,. ___ 

Please list equipment/appliances requiring electricity: _____________ 

Will you be having a drawing for a door prize(s)? If so, what will your door prize be? ________ 

Return a copy of this form, along with a check for the grand total to: 


Carthage Chamber of Commerce, 402 South Garrison Ave., Carthage, MO 64836 


Or fax to: (417) 358-7479 


To pay by credit card, call Neely at (417) 358-2373 


Payment is required to reserve your booth space if you are not a Chamber member. 


No refunds after Friday, February 17th. 




Carthage Chamber of Commerce Presents 


Exclusive Event Sponsor $3000 (limit of1) 


Event Co-Sponsor $1500 (limitof2) 


Event Partner $1000 (Iimitof3) 


Event date: Friday, October 14 

Sponsor will receive traditional media and social media promotions including: Radio, Press 
Releases, all-Chamber em ails, Facebook and Twitter. 

Sponsor Commitment 
Member Business: ____________________________ 

Contact person: _____________________________ 

Phone: ___________________~------------
Email: _____________---'-__________________ 

Commitment level: 

_ Exclusive sponsor ($3000) 

_ Co-sponsor ($1500) 

_ Partner ($1000) 

Final sanctioning of event will take place on Friday, October 14 and will be at the discretion of safety officials. 
There will be no refunds in the case of high winds, rain, or other unforeseen cancellations. 

Sponsor Signature: __________ Date:.___ 

Chamber Signature: Date: ___ 

, ~ .' 

For more information, contact Mary Jo at 417-358-2373 or mjlittle.@carthagechamber.com. 
. - 

mailto:mjlittle.@carthagechamber.com


Carthage Chamber of Commerce Presents 


Premium Full-page $650 (limitofl) 
Premium a" x 10" ad placement inside front cover 


Complimentary copy of finished book 


Full-page $600 (limitof2) 
.8"xl0"ad 

Complimentary copy of finished book 

Half~page $350 
8"x5" ad 

Quarter-page $200 
4"x5" ad 

Eighth-page $100 

SliBhtly larBer than a business card 


4" x 2 1/2" ad 


Full-page 

8" X 10" 


Premium location $650 


Standard location $600 


All ads are 
full-color, glossy 
ads and include 

professional 
design and layout. 

Half-page' 


8" x 5" 


$350 


Eighth-pageQuarter-
page 4" x 21/2" 

$100
4" x 5'~ 

$200 

F"_",. ~: - • ~ t -" -~~ ' •• 7 ","'?"_.' ". _ ,~><.,- ';.!- ~"'C:."''''~ "';~'~':J" ...~,~ .. ~'~, ~)"'~ "," ,~,~ ~ ,~~._ "'~~<.4<. _'"' ~'L~'" ",:',,' ',: ~., )~J$ 

<~. ':': Fo~~~i~ .Jnfqrm'~ti~ll~ ,f~9.~~'~~:.~~f:~;i~;~~~~~:Z~~~~2~!~ 9!~nv,I:~~)e.~c'~:itlj~g~ch~mb~r.co~~,:,' ,::'< 

... ..,- .;:~"~" ~",' :",.,,-{,,' . --. ~":(.;"" .. ,,_.,,, ,,' ~~.~I_·.,_:r., t...."~·::~it_ "", ""....... _~.~ ~,,- _:::-·r, ~ "',. ~~ .. ; ~ .. , 1:'"", ~""'. ~ 'J .. S o:,~ 


(l 

http:9!~nv,I:~~)e.~c'~:itlj~g~ch~mb~r.co


"Rosenberg's Rules ofOrder" 
(Simple Rules ofParliamentary Procedure for the 21st Cefllllry) 

Introduction 

The rules of procedure at meetings should be simple enough for most people to understand. Unfortunately, that has not 
always been the case. Virtually all clubs. associations, boards, councils and bodies follow a set of rules - "Robert's 
Rules of Order" - which arc embodied in a small. but complex. book. VirtuaJly no one I know has actually read this 
book cover to cover. Worse yet. the book was written for another time, and for another purpose. If one is chairing or 
running a Parliament, then "Robert's Rules of Order" is a dandy and quite useful handbook: for procedure in that 
complex setting. On the other hand. if one is running a meeting of, say, II. 5-member body with a few members of the 
public in attendance, II. simplified version ofthe rules ofparliamentary procedure is in order. 

Hence, the birth of ~Rosenberg's Rules ofOrder." 

What fullows is my version of the rules of parliamentary procedure, based on my 20 years of experience chairing 
meetings in state and local government. These rules have been simplified for the smaller bodies we chair or in which 
we participate. slimmed down for the 21st Cenl:Ul)'. yet retaining the basic tenets of order to which we have grown 
accustomed. 

This treatise on modern parliamentary procedure is built on a foundation supported by the following four pillars: (I) 
Rules should establish order. The fIBt pwpose of rules of parliamentary procedure is to establish II. framework for the 
orderly conduct of meetings. (2) Rules should be clear. Simple rules lead to wider understanding and participation. 
Complex rules create two classes: those who understand and participate; and those who do not fully understand and do 
not fully participate. (3) Rules should be user friendly. That is, the rules must be simple enough that the public is 
invited into the body and feels that it has participated in the process. (4) Rules should enforce the will of the majority 
while protecting the rights of the minority. The ultimate purpose of rules of procedure is to encourage discussion and 
to facilitate decision-maldng by the body. In a democracy, majority rules. The rules must enable the majority to 
express itself and fashion a result, while permitting the minority to also express itself: but not dominate, and fully 
participate in the process. 

Tile Role of tile Chair 

While all members of the body should know and understand the rules of parliamentary procedure, it is the Chair of the 
body who is charged with applying the rules in the conduct of the meeting. The Chair should be well vmed in those 
rules. The Chair, for all intents and purposes, makes the final ruling on the rules every time the Chair states an action. 
In fact. all decisions by the Chair are final unless overruled by the body itself. 

Since the Chair runs the conduct ofthe meeting, it is usual courtesy for the Chair to playa less active role in the debate 
and discussion than other members of the body. This does not mean that the Chair should not participate in the debate 
or discussion. To the contnuy, the Chair as a member of the body bas the fuji right to participate in the debate. 
discussion and decision-making of the body. What the Chair should do, however. is strive to be the last to speak: at the 
discussion and debate stage, and the Chair should not make or second a motion unless the Chair is convinced that no 
other member of the body will do so at that point in time. 

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Discussion 

Formal meetings normally have a written, often published agenda. Informal meetings may have only an oral or 
understood agenda. In either case, the meeting is governed by the agenda and the agenda constitutes the body's agreed
upon roadmap for the meeting. And each agenda item can be handled by the Chair in the following basic format: 

First. the Chair should clearly announce the agenda item number and should clearly state what the agenda item subject 
is. The Chair should then announce the format (which follows) that will be followed in considering the agenda item. 

Second, following that agc:nda format, the Chair should invite the appropriate person or persons to report on the item. 
including any recommendation that they might have. The appropriate person or persons may be the Chair, a member of 
the body. a staffperson, or a committee chair charged with providing input on the agenda item. 

Tbird. the Chair should ask members of the body if they have any technical questions of clarification. At this point, 
members of the body may ask clarifYing questions to the person or persons who reported on the item, and that person 
or persons should be given time to respond. 

Fourtb, the Chair should invite public comments, or if appropriate at a formal meeting, should open the public 
meeting fot public input. Ifnumerous members of the public indicate a desire to speak to the subject, the Cbair may 
limit the time of public speakers. At the conclusion of the public comments, the Chair should announce that public 
input has concluded (or the public hearing as the case may be is closed). 

FiM, the Chair should invite a motion. The Chair should announce the name of the member of the body who makes 
the motion. 



Sis.th, the Chair should detennined if any member of the body wishes to second the motion. The Chair should 
announce the name of the member of the body who seconds the motion. (It is normally good practice for a motioo to 
require a scrond before proceeding with it, to ensure that it is not just one member of the body who is interested in a 
panicular approach. However, a scrond is not an absolute requimnent, and the Chair can proceed with consideration 
and vote on a motion even when there is no second. This is a maner left to the discretion ofthe Chair.) 

Seventll, if the motion is made and seconded, the Chair should make sure everyone understands the motion. This is 
done in one of three ways: (l) The Chair can ask the maker of the motion to repeat it. (2) The Chair can repeat the 
molion. (3) The Chair can ask the secretllry or the clerk of the body to repeat the motion. 

Eighth, the Chair should now invite discussion of the motion by the body. If there is no desired discussion, or after the 
discussion has ended, the Chair should announce that the body will vote on the motion. If there has been no discussion 
or very brief discussion, then the vote OIl the motion should proceed immediately and there is no need to repeat the 
motion. Ifthere has been substantial discussion, then it is normafly best to make sure everyone understands the motion 
by repeating il 

NiDth, the Chair takes a vote. Simply asking for the "ayes". and then asking for the "nays" norrnally does this. If 
members of the body do not vote. then they "abstain". Unless the rules of the body provide otherwise (or unless a 
super-majority is required as delineated later in these rules) then a simple majority determines whether the motion 
passes or is defeated. 

Tetlth. the Chair should announce the result of the vote and should announce what action (if any) the body bas taken. 
In announcing the result, the Chair should indicate the names of the members of the body. if any, who voted in the 
minority on the motion. This announcement might take the fullowing form: "The motion passes by a vote of 3-2, with 
Smith and Jones dissenting. We have passed the motion requiring 10 days notice for all future meetings ofthis body." 

Motionl in General 

Motions are the vehicles for decision-making by a body. It is usually best to have a motion before the body prior to 
commencing discussion ofan agenda item. This helps the body focus. 

Motions are made in II simple two-step process. First, the Chair should recognize the member of the body. Second, the 
member of the body makes a motion by preceding the member's desired approach with the words: "I move ...... 
So, a typical motion might be: "I move that we give IO-day's notice in the future for all our meetings." 

The Chair usuaJly initiates the motion by either ( I) Inviting the members of the body to make a motion. "A motion at 
this time would be in order." (2) Suggesting a motion to the members of the body. "A motion would be in order that 
we give lo-day's notice in the future for aJl our meetings." (3) Making the motion. As noted, the Chair has every right 
as a member of the body to make a motion, but should normally do so only if the Chair wishes to make a motion on an 
item but is convinced that no other member ofthe body is willing to step forward to do so at a particular time. 

Tile Three Basic Motionl 

There are three motions that are the most common and recur often at meetings: 

The byjc etion. The basic motion is the one that puts forward a decision for the body's consideration. A basic 
motion might be: "( move that we create as-member comminee to plan and put on our annual fundraiser." 

Tbe mltion te amend. If a member wants to change a basic motion that is before the body, they would move to 
amend it. A motion to amend might be: "I move that we amend the motion to have a lo-member committee." A 
motion to amend takes the basic motion which is before the body and seeks to change it in some way. 

lbe "b,titgts mo,iop. If a member wants to completely do away with the basic motion that is before the body, and 
put a new motion before the body, they would move a substitute motion. A substitute motion might be: "I move a 
substitute motion that we cancel the annual fundraiser this year." 

"Motions to amend" and "substitute motions" are often confused. But they are quite different, and their effect (if 
passed) is quite different. A motion to amend seeks to retain the basic motion On the floor, but modifY it in some way. 
A substitute motion seeks to throw out the basic motion on the floor, and substitute a new and different motion for it. 
The decision as to whether a motion is really a "motion to amend" or a 'substitute motion" is left to the chair. So that if 
a member makes wbat that member calls a "motion to amend", but the Chair detennines that it is really a "substitute 
motion", then the Chait's designation governs. 

Multiple Motions Before the Body 

There can be up to three motions on the floor at the same lime. The Chair can reject a fourth motion until the Chair has 
dealt with the three that are on the floor and has resolved them. 

When there are two or three motions on the floor (after motions and seconds) at the same time. the vote should proceed 
first on the !AS motion that is made. So, for example, assume the first motion is a basic "motion to have as-member 
committee to plan and put on our annual fundraiser." During the discussion of this motion, a member might make a 
second motion to "amend the main motion to have a I O-member committee, not a S-member committee to plan and put 



on our annual fundraiser." And perhaps, during that discussion, a member makes yet a third motion as a "substitute 
motion that we not have an annual fundraiser this year." The proper procedure would be as follows: 

First. the Chair would deal with the third (the last) motion on the floor, the substitute motion. After discussion and 
debate. a vote would be taken first on the third motion. If the substitute motion ~ it would be a substitute for the 
basic motion and would eliminate it. The first motion would be moot, as would the second motion (which sought 10 
amend the first motion), and the action on the agenda item would be completed on the passage by the body ofthe third 
motion (the substitute motion). No vote would be taken on the first or second motions. On the other hand, if the 
substitute motion (the third mOlion) failed then the Chair would proceed to consideration ofthe second (now, the last) 
motion on the floor. the motion to amend. 

Sec:oIKl, if the substitute motion failed, the Chair would now deal with the second (now, the last) motion on the floor, 
the motion to amend. The discussion and debate would focus strictly on the amendment (should the conunittee by 5 
members or 10 members). If the motion to amend ~ the Chair would now move to consider the main motion (the 
firsl motion) M amended. If the motion to amend ~ the Cbair would now move to consider !he main motion (the 
first motion) in its original format, not amended. 

Third, the Chair would now deal with the first motion that was placed on the floor. The original motion would either 
be in its original fonnat (S-member committee), or, if amended. would be in its amended format (IO-member 
committee). And the question on the floor for discussion and decision would be whether a cornmittee should plan and 
put on the annual fundraiser. 

To Debate or Not to Debate 

The basic rule of motions is that they are subject to discussion and debate. Accordingly, basic motions, motions to 
amend, and substitute motions are all eligible, each in their tum, for full discussion before and by the body. 'The debate 
can continue as long as members ofthe body wish to discuss an item., subject to the decision ofthe Chair that it is time 
to move on and take action, 

There are exceptions to the general rule of free and open debate on motions. The exceptions all apply when there is a 
desire of the body to move on. The following motions are nru debatable (that is, when the following motions are made 
and seconded. the Chair must immediately call for a vote ofthe body withoul debate on the motion): 

A IIlldion t2 adjourn. This motion, if passed, requires lhe body to immediately adjourn to its next regularly scheduled 
meeting. It requires a simple majority vote. 

A p!Otlqg to rep. This motion, if passed, requires the body to immediately take a recess. Nonnally, the Chair 
determines the length ofthe recess which may be a few minutes or an hour. It requires a simple majority vote. 

A motMm to fix the time to adioura. This motion., if passed, requires the body to adjourn the meeting at the specific 
lime set in the motion. For example, the motion might be: or move we adjourn this meeting at midnight. " It requires a 
simple ml\iority vote. 

A motion to lable. This motion, if passed, requires discussion of the agenda item to be halted and the agenda item to 
be placed on "bold". The motion can contain a specific time in which the item can come back. to the body: ttr move we 
table this item until OUr regular meeting in October." Or the motion can contain no specific time for the return of the 
item, in which case a motion to take tbe item offthe table and bring it back to the body will have to be taken at a future 
meeting. A motion to table an item (or to bring it back 10 the body) requires a simple majority vote. 

A mptioR to limit debate. The most common fonn ofthis motion is to say: "J move the previous question" or "I move 
the question" or WI call the question." When a member ofthe body makes such a motion, the member is really saying: 
"I've had enough debate. Let's get on with the vote", When such a motion is made, the Chair should ask for a second, 
stop debate, and vote on the motion to limit debate. The motion to limit debate requires a 213 vote of the body, Note: 
that a motion to limit debate could include a time limit. For example: "I move we limit debate on this agenda item to 
15 minutes." Even in this fonnat, the motion to limit debate requires a 2/3 vote of the body, A similar motion is a 
motion to oQ,icct 10 consideration of an item. This motion is not debatable, and if passed, precludes the body from even 
considering an item on the agenda. It also requires a 2/3 vote. 

Majority aDd Super-Majority Votes 

In a democracy, a simple majority vote detennines a question. A tie vote means the motion fails. So in a 7-member 
body, a vote of 4~3 passes the motion. A vote of 3-3 with one abstention means the motion fails. If one member is 
absent and the vote is 3-3, the motion still fails. 

All motions require a simple majority, but there are a few exceptions. The exceptions come up when the body is taking 
an action which. effectively, cuts olfthe ability ofa minority of the body to take an action or discuss and item, These 
extraordinary motions require a 213 majority (a super-majority) to pass: 

Mot. to limit debate. Whether a member says "I move the previous question" or "I move the question" or ". call the 
question" or "I move to limit debate", it all amounts to an attempt to cut off the ability of the minority to discuss an 
item.. and it requires a 2/3 vote to pass. 



I 


I 
J 

1 
f 

Motioa to ,I. Dominatioa" When choosing officers of the body (like the: Chair) nominations are in ordc:r either 
from a nominating committee: or from the floor of the body. A motion to close nominations effc:ctively cuts off the 
rigllt of the: minority to nominate officers. and it requires a 213 vote: 10 pass. 

MftitR to ohjed 10 tbe £tMi!Jeratiop 6': a qYFstiog. Nonnally. such a motion is unnecessary since the objectionable 
item c;an be tabled, or defeated straight up. Howevc:r, when members ofa body do not even want an item on the agenda 
to be considere:d, then such a motion is in order. It is not debatable. and it requires a 213 vote to pass. 

Motio! to !Ulpepd 'he ruin, This motion is debatable, but requires a 213 vote: to pass. If the body has its own rules of 
order, conduct or procedure. this motion allows the body to suspend the rules for a particular purpose. For example, the 
body (a private club) might have a rule: prohibiting the attendance at meetings by non-club members. A motion to 
suspend the rules would be in order to allow a non-club member to anc:nd a meeting ofthe club on a particular date: or 
on a particular agenda item. 

The MotiOil to Recoulider 

There is a special and unique motion that requires a bit of explanation all by itself: the motion to reconsider. A tenet of 
parliamentary procedure is finality. Aftc:r vigorous discussion, debate, perhaps disagreement and a vote, there must be 
some closure to the issue. And so, after a vote is taken. the matter is deemed closed, subject only to a re-openc:r if a 
proper motion to reconsider is made. 

A motion to reconsider require:s a majority vote to pass, but there are two special rules that apply only to the: motion to 
reconsider. First, is timing. A motion 10 reconsidc:r must be made at the: meeting where the ite:m was ftrSt voted upon or 
at the very next meeting of the body. A motion to reconsider made at a later time is untimely. (The body, howevc:r, can 
always vote: to suspend the rules and by a 213 majority. can allow a motion to reconsider to be made at another time.) 
Second, a motion to reconsidc:r can only be made by certain members ofthe body. Accordingly, a motion to reconsider 
can only be made: by a membc:r who voted ill the ma.iprity on the original motion. If such a member bas a change of 
heart, he or she can make: the motion to reconsider (any oilier member of the body may second the motion). If a 
member who voted in ~ minority seeks to make the motion to reconsidc:r, it must be ruled out of order. The purpose 
of this rule is finality. If a member of the minority could make a motion 10 reconsider, then the item could be brought 
baclc to the body again and again. That would defeat the purpose of fmality. 

If the motion to reconsider passes. then the original matter is back before the body. and a new original motion is then 
in order. The matter can be discussed and debated as ifit were on the floor for the first time. 

Courtesy aad Decorum 

The rules of order are meant to create an aunosphere where the members of the body and the members of the public 
can attend 10 business efficiently. fairly and with fuJI participation. At the same time, it is up to the Chair and the 
members of the body to maintain common counesy and decorum. Unless the setting is very informal, it is always best 
for only one person at a time: to bave the floor, and it is always best for every speaker to be first recognized by the: 
Chair before proceeding to speak. 

The Chair should always ensure that debate and discussion of an agenda item focuses on the item and the policy in 
question, not the personaJities of the members of the: body. Debate on policy is healthy. debate on personalities is not. 
The Chair has the right to cut off discussion thaI is too personal, is 100 loud, or is too crude. 

Debate and discussion should be focused. but free and open. In the interest of time, the Chair may, howevc:r. limit the 
time allotted to speakers, including members of the body. 

Can II. member of the body interrupt the speaker? The genend rule is "no." Thc:re are, however. exceptions. A speaker 
may be interrupted for the following reasons: 

Privilm. The proper interruption would be: "point of privilege.n The Chair would then ask the interrupter to -state 
your point· Appropriate: points of privilege relate to anything that would interfc:re with the nonnal comfort of the 
meeting. For example, the room may be too hot or 100 cold, or a blowing fan might incerfere with a person's ability to 
hear. 
Or.u. The propc:r interruption would be: "point of order." Again. the: Cbair would ask the interrupter to "state your 
point.' Appropriate points of order relate to anything that would not be considered appropriate conduct of the meeting. 
For example, if the Chair moved on 10 a vote on a motion that permits debate without allowing that discussion or 
debate:. 

4ItRnI. If the Chair makes a ruling that a member of the body disagrees with, that member may appeal the ruling of 
the chair. If the motion is seconded. and after debate, if it passes by a simple majority vote, then the ruling of the Otair 
is deemed reversed. 

Call (0( orden of the day, This is simply anothc:r way of saying. "Let's return to the agenda." If a member believes 
thaI the body has drifted from the agreed-upon agenda. such a call may be made. It does not require a vote, and when 
the Chair discovers that the agenda has not been followed, the Chair simply reminds the body to return to the agenda 
item properly before them. If the Chair fails to do so, the Chair's determination may be appealed. 

L 




I 
f 

i 

I 

f 
I 
I 


J'ltll!tgw. motiOl. During deIIIIm and discussion ofa motiOll, the maker ofthe mouon on the floor, It any lime, may 
intemJpt a speaker to withdraw his or her motion fi'om the floor. The motion is immediately deemed withdrawn. 
a1thou8b the Clair may ask the person who secoaded the motion ifbe or she wishes to make the motion, aud any other 
member may make the motion ifproperly I'l:OOgair.ed. 

Speelal Notet About Public: lDput 

The rules outlined above will belp make meetinp very public-fiiCDdly. But in addition, and partieularly for the Chair, 
it is wise to remember three special rules that apply to each lienda item: 

Rule Oae: Tell the public what the body will be doing. 

Rule Two: Keep the public informed while the body is doing it 

Rule Three: When the body has acted, tell the public whit the body did. 

! 
[ 

II 
I 

http:I'l:OOgair.ed

